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Strategic report

The Directors present thew strategic report and the audited consoldated financial statements for DLG Acquisitions Limited and its
subsidiaries { the Group”, "we" or “gur”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

DLG Acquisitions Limuted (“the Company”) 1s a joint venture equally and ultimately ewned by Warner Bros, Dscavery, Inc. and
Liberty Global ple The Company acquired Al3Media Holdings Umited which operates the AllaMedsa production and distribution
business ("AlBMedia’) in September 2014,

All3Media companies have an unrivalied track record of producing popular and critica¥y acclaimed 1P, ranging from contemporary
thrillers, d etective series, saap operas, comedy, costume drama, dotumentary, true crime, natural history, formatted
entertzinment, factual entertainment, features, Children's, and realty programming. More than 40 production companies are
hased in the UK, US, Germany, Be'gium, the Netherlands, and New Zealand producing 4,000 hours annually for linear broadcasters.
V0D, social media, and other digital platforms. All3Media’s distribut'on business, All3iMedia lnternational, exploits programme
rights around the waorlkd from its offices in Londen, New York, and Singapore. The Group ¥ focused on innovation, creative
excellence and entertaining all audiences with brilllant programming, from long-running returning series through to the launch of
new formats, new talent, and new busness madels.

All3aMedia produces a well balanced genre mix of programmes with returning shows and nternationally renowned brands such as
Midsomer Murders, Call the Midwife, Gogglebox, Great British Menu, Sort Your Life Out, The Cube, Gold Rush, Berlin Day & Night,
Shortland Street, Brokenwood, Lingo and The Circle. This was supported in 2022 with a rch list of new titles such as The Tourist,
The Thief, Hs Wite and the Cance, Ridley, Witness Number 3, The Tinder Swindler, My Donor Body, Polar Bear, and the hit format,
The Tranors, that hasalready sold into 20 terrories.

AllaMedia Internationa ! dstr butes television programmes and formats ta more than 200+ territories and has over 30,000 hours of
content In its catalogue and rapresents third party producers together w th AlBMedia’s own production companies.

Introduction
In 2022, All3Med @ produced more shows than ever and delwvered its haghest revenue and EBITDA. The Group has concentrated on

organic growth and delvaring its key strategic goals - nameYy - building the format catalogue, zccelerating the pushinto premium
factual, deve bping a strong scripted slate, strengthening the distributon business and invest ng in the digital bus‘ness

Financial Summary of the Group Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

£m £m
Revenue 1,020.8 866 &
EBITOA* 100.2 837
EBITDA excluding the effect of IFRS 16 50.3 717
Cash pererated from operatons 64.3 685

* EBTIDA 15 calculated by adjust ng operat ng praft for interest, lax, depreciation, amartisation, excepuional items {one off items
that impact the Group's EBITDA for the year which do notrecur and do not present a far reflection of the performance of the
Graup), transitiona - cests (one off costs of redundancy, property restructurng and okher réstructur.ng), transactional costs (cosis
relating to corporate develapment act vity}, costs related to deferred consideration and put and call options, but including results
of joint venture sand assocates (see note 5}
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Stralegic repurl {vuntlinued)

Financial and business highlights

*  The Group delivered revenue of £1,020.8m and EBITDA of £100.2m in the year to 31 December 2022,

*  The Group comprises over 40 production companies and produced over 4,000 hours of programmong, including over 100+
returning shows, and distributed in over 200 territories.

e  The Group maintained its position as a leading production company and ence again topped the 8roadcast Indie Survey. Raw
topped the survey's ‘Peer Poll’ for the third consecutive year having “duilt an unrivalled reputation for producing premium
documentaries”.

s The Group delivered a number of key programmes including Hollyoaks, Midsomer Murders, The Traitors (UK and US), Sort Your
Life Out, The Cube, Lingo, The Larkins, The Gold, Life on Our Planet, Gold Rush, Call the Midwife, Berlin Day & N ght and Shortland
Street.

»  The Group continues to develop its relationships with the VOD platforms and s now a key provider of programming to the man
global VOO players.

+  The Group invested in two production Companies in the yvear; Build Your Qwn (BYO) Films, a production company launched by
co-CECs Vicky McClure and Jonny Owen, that specialises in both scripted and non-scripted production, and in sports production
specialist, 3Rock.

*  The Group acquired Pos Video & Television B.V. as part of the Group's strategy to grow its television production business.

Principal activities and review of the business

The principal activity of the Group is the praduction and distribution of television programmes. The principa’ activity of the
Company is the holding Company of various All3Media production and distribution companies. The Directors do not anticipate any
changes in those activities over the coming year.

The Group's EBITDA is £100.2m for the year to 31 December 2022 (2021: £83.7m}).

The Group's net debt was £759.4m 25 at 31 Decernber 2022 {£625.1rm at 31 December 2021}, see note 27. The currenty
deneminations of the debt (refer to note 19] reflect the Group’s net cash in-Hlows, a significant proportion of which are non-sterling
denominated, which is mitigated in part by a natural currency hedge. Gross bank debt and debt external to the Group, excluding
deferred financing fees, was £844.8m as at 31 December 2022 {£713.2m as at 31 December 2021).

Strategy and acquisitions

The strategy of the Group 15 to ach'eve sustainable growth, delivered through a combination of organic growth, acquisition and
geographical expansion. The Group comprises a broad range of production companies that develop, produce and explait strong
programme brands that cover multiple genres and geographies, thereby diversifying risk across the Group

Key performance indicators [“KPJs”}
The Group regu larly monitors its KPIs and the followng are considered to be the key KPIs for the year to 31 December 2022:

financial prof de measures
. Revenue was £1,020.8m {2021: £866.6m), a 17 8% increase on 2021,

e EBITDA was E100.2m {2021 £83.7m}, a 19.7% increase on 2021.

EBITDA excludmg the effect of IFRS 16 was £80.3m (2021: £71.7m), a 25 9% increase on 2021,

Gross profit margin was 25 8% {2021 restated: 26.1%). See page 18 for restatement details.

Cash and cash gquivalents (net of overdrafts) as at 31 December 2022 were £81.6m (2021: £82.8m}.

L] Net cash generated from operating activities, before payments related to deferred consideratian and put and call aptions, was
£61.0m (2021 £60.7m).

¢ Non-UK revenue by destination was 68 9% of total revenue (2021: 65.0%).

e Thetop 30 shows for the year represent 45.5% of total turnover (2021: 47%).

e 325%(2021: 22.9%) of the Group’s continuing revenue cemes from secondary revenue sources, includ ng distribution and
digital revenue {i.e. revenue sources other than those derived from primary production licence fees).

Financial risk management

The Group’s operations expose it 1o & vanety of financial nisks that include the effects of changes In price risk, credit rigk, iquidity
risk, ‘nterest rate cash flow risk and foreign currency risk- The Group moniters these risks and seeks to hm t the adverse effects on
the financia’ performance of the Group by monitarng leve’s of finance and related costs and taking appropriate act'on where
nacessary.
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Strategic report (continued)

Price risk

The Group is éxpased Lo price risk given the nature of the husiness, but this & monitored to ensure that this risk does not increase
to an unacceptable leve ! This 1s achieved by comparing price across the Groug and our use of exclusive IP and strong talent
relationships to leverage our portfol ¢ and negotiate competitive rates for programmes

Tedi risk
The Group has mplemented policies that require appropriate credit checks on potential customers befare sales are made, and
gven the Group’s custamer base the risk that the Group is exposed to 5 considered to be relatively low.

Ligu idity risk
The Group active y monitors its hquid ty position through cash flow forecasting to ensura that it has sufficient available funds for
aperations and planned expansions.

Interest rate cash flow risk
The Group has nterast bearing assets and liabilities, inchuding cash and debt commitments. Hedging arrangements, such as interest
rate swaps are in place in order to reduce the exposure to this risk.

Foregn Currency risk

The Group is exposed to fore gn currency risk through its overseas operations, borrowing and through averseas trading. A cross
wirrency swap 15 in place in order to swap sterl ng debt into US dollar debt, to be serviced by the Group’s earnings in this currency.
Overseas operations are not hedged as cash flows arising create a natural hedge against the converted debt above.

Sea note 30 for further details and disclosures around the Group’s financial risk management.

Principal risks and uncertainties

There are a number of risks and uncertainties facng the Group The key operational business risks and uncertainties that affect the

Group are considered tabe:

«  The current macro econom climate incuding the continugd impadt of COVID 19 presents a risk and ¢hallenge for the Group.
The impact of inflation throughout the Group means that the cost of production has increased since 2019. We continue to
manage ths impact by reviewing produrtion protocels and analys ng opportunities to produce content more efficiently, with
management monitor ng and reviewing gross margin KP7s. The economic enviranrneat impacts television advertising spend
which has an impa ¢t on the Group The Group mitlgates these risk through geographic diversificatlan, and a focus on the
programming needs of those broadcasters and media pltforms that are less reliant upon advert'sing as their main source of
revenue,n particuiar the BBC, the pay televisicn netwarks and SVOD provaders such as Netfiix and Amazon,

«  Competition from other television producers for both programming commssions and key talent The Group attemptsto
mitigate th s risk by having 2 spread of entrepreneuriai, creatwely led companies in the Group which have strong relationships
w th broadcasting commssianers and key ta’ent, encourage an exceplional level af creativity and have a strong pipeline of
new programme farmats.

- Success M aud ence ratings of the Group's programimung wh ch may Influence future commiss'anng decisions. The Group
mtigates this risk by attemplmg to ensure that the programm ing offered meets the needs of broadcasters, media platforms
and their respective audiences,

e Pressure on cash tow due to the general economic envronment The Group has sufficient working capita. and adequate
undrawn committed faciities to magatethis risk, including £17.5m undrawn on the £50m revolv ng credit facility.

Future developments

WhHe these continuesto be an uncertan e onome environment, as well as pressure on margins in the production sector, the
Group’s abiity to produce and sell programmes internationally, together with its continued abisty to attract and retain creative
talent, helps to mitigate the impact of this
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Strategir report (rantinued)

Saction 172 statement

The Directors are fully aware of their duty under section 172(1}) of the Companies Act 2006 to act in the way which they consider, i
good faith, wou'd be most like'y to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whote. The Directars
consider that, during the year to 31 Decemnber 2022, they have acted fairy between members having regard to the long term and
the interests of the Group’s employees and cther stakaholders, including the impact of its actrvities on the community, the
environment and the Group’s repulatian, when taking decisions.

The Long Term

The importance, relevance and demand for high-qualily television content remains strong in an ever-evolving media landszape.

The D rectors are well aware of the dynamc media landscape, in terms of the eveiving consumer cansumption behaviours, growth
of new global platforms, and changing tastes in demand for genres and formats. The Directors’ long term strategy continues to seek
to position the Group to be able to take advantage of Lhese changes by striving to bring together top creative talent, to develop,
produce and deliver world class television, film and digitat content and to maintain znd deve’op strong relationships both with the
tradironal customers and newer giobal platforms Where confiicts anse between the short term and long term consequences of a
decision these consequences are we ghed carefuly. Whilst precedence is gven to long term benefits, the Directors will consider
whether these are outweighed by short term impacts in reaching their conclusions.

Employees

The welfare and deve 'opment of the Groug's employees is of highest amportance to the Directors. See pages 1o 13 of the
Directors’ report for a detailed oversight of the Group’s Equal Opportun ties Policy, Anti-Harassment and Bullying Policy, employee
mnvo'vement practices, and ta'ent and tra'ning in tiatives

Business Relatlonships

The Directors tantinually seek to maintain and develap strong and mutua’ly beneficial relationships with the Group’s suppliers and
customers The Group engages regularly with its customers and suppl'ers through meetings, attendance at television content
markets and gther industry events in order 1o ensure its strategy and va'ves are aligned with customer needs. The Group
mamtans strong relationships with and actively contributes to industry bodies

The Directors are committed to complying with al-applicab'e local laws and regulatians including in relation to modern slavery,
human trafficking and anti-br bery and corruption Contractual provis:ons are updated to ensure that external counterparties are
obliged to adhere to ali applicable laws and regulations.

Community and Environment

The Group produces a broad range of programming across many genres. n doing 50, the Directors recognise their duty of care to alt
participants and cammit to providing appropriate support at alt stages of programme creation.

As part of the wider portfalio of programming, the Group’s production campan’es create many high quality and social’y responsible
programmes wh ch raise awareness of key social and topical issves, aiming to show broad on-screen diversity and inclusion

The Group is committed to mirmising its eavironmenta! ‘mpact. Dexails of actions taken by the Group can be faund on pages 1110
12 of the Directors’ report.

High standords of business conduct

The Dsrectors strive Lo operate the business to the highest level of conduct. All staff are required to adhere to the Group's D versity
and lncius'on Policy and its Anti-Harassment and Bu'lymg Policy and adherence 1s drven by the Group’'s management teams.
Operating companies are required to adhere to the Group’s Accounting Polkies Manual The Group has an Internal Audit function
which performs routine audits which will review the overall control framewark and comphance with these policies and procedures

The Directors treat al' externa! stakeholders collaboratrvely and fairly, and duly expect a level of conduct from them which aligns to
the Group’s va'ues. Business pract'ces are reviewed by the Group's Finance and Controls Committee which meets quarterly and
includes representatives from both shareholders.
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Strategic report {continued)

Section 172 statement [continued)
Fair dealing between members

The Group has two ultimate corporate shareholders, Uberty Global ple and Warner Bres. Discovery, Inc., who hold equal
representation an the Board. The relevance of each such shareholder may ncrease or decrease depending on the matter or issue
at questicn, 50 the Daxectors seek to consider the needs and prionties of each shareholder during their dscussions and as part of
their decision making.

Approval
Appraved by the Board and signed by on its behalf-

Anié ng,aa (May 12,2023 10:22 GMT+1;

Aniithingan
Director
12 May 2023
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their annuat report on the affairs of the Group, together with the audited consolidated financial statements
and independent auditors’ report, for the year to 31 December 2022.

Capital structure

In May 2019 the Group completed a refinancing of its corporate bank loaa facilities, entering into a new €405m First len facilty
[EJRIBOR+3.75%), a £74m second lien facility (SONLA+8.00%), and a £50m revolving credit facility [EURIBOR+3.25%). In November
2019 there was a repricing of the debt which resulted in a reduction of 0.25% on bath the first lien and revolving credit facility
There have been no changes in FY22,

The Group's bank loans at 31 December 2022 totalled £551.8m (31 December 2021: £491.4m) as disclosed in note 19 of the
financial statements. The Group's loan facilities expire between 2025 and 2027,

Business environment and future outlook

- The market for content is strong with a growing customer base and increased investment.

s Profliferation of cantent buyers and new commercial business madels,

Scale is important and the Group is well positioned for further acguisitions {bolt-on and transformaticnal).

Seripted 15 3 key area for growth with growing global demand, high margin, secondary upside and synergies.

Format success is key given high margins and global secandary exploitation.

uUs growth and geographical expansion is central to A3M strategy.

integrated distribution model drives exploitaticn of IP giving control and creating long term value in A3M.

Digital platforms driving fast growth opportunities given AVOD spend farecast to double by 2025, Fast growing divect to
consumar content distribution is an opportunity (e.g. fast channels, AvOD & SvOD).

* e o ® =

Charitabie contributions

During the period the Group made various charitable donations totalling £305,875 {2021: £266,278). The Group sponsors and
supports a variety of industry bodies and initiatives, including sponsering student bursaries through the National Film and
Television School, the Royal Television Society and the Grierson Trust and sponsosing Edinburgh Internationat Television Festwa™'s
training programme.

Equal opportunities

The Group strongly believes in and actively supports the principle of providing equal opportunities, both ta applicants for
employment and to existing colieagues The Group opposes all forms of discrimination on the grounds of race, celour, nationality,
ethnic or natienal origin, age, rehgion or phi‘osophical belief, gender, gender reassignment, marital or civil partner status, sexual
crientation, political view, pregnancy, maternity. or disability. No differentials are operated in salary or contractual terms based on
any of these facters.

The Group's Equal Opportunities Policy is m hne with current legislation, and is reviewed and updated frequently. The policy clearly
identifies acts of associative discriminat-on and perceptive d'scrimination making it clear to colleagues what these types of
discrimination are and how they can be avo'ded.

The policy applies to every Group colleague {including each employee, worker and individual whao is engaged under a contract for
service} who 15 involved 1n any aspect of the management of employment and to all colleagues who make decisions or
recommendations concerning recrutment, remuneration, promaotion, training, demetian, transfer, and other terms, conditions, or
privileges of employment. It also appl es to ai colleagues in their relations with other colleagues. This includes giving full and fair
consideration (having regard to the person’s particular aptitudes and abilities) to applications for employment that disabled
persons (as defined in the Equality Act 2010} make to the Group. Furthermare, the Group is committed to continuing the
employmant of any employee of the Group wha has become disabled during the period in which the Group employed them,
wherever passible. The Group 15 committed to providing reasonable adjustments, training, and development and to continuing to
support their career development.

The Graugp fully supporis the rights and opportun‘ties of all people to seek, obtain and hold employment without discrimination or
harassment and has adapted all employment policies in line with changes in legislation.

The Graup has a separate Diversity and Inclusion Policy, setting out best practice and the Group's commitment to supporting
diversity and creating an inclusive culture The policy promates a diverse workforce and an inclusive culture and environment in
which all people are accepted and treated with respect, and in which colleagues are able to reach their full potential and delver
their best work.
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Directors’ report (continued)

Equal opportunities {continued)

In 2022, the Group appointed its first Head of Owersity, Inclusion and Equity to support and promote inclusive initatives. Reporting
dwectly to Group COO the role works across atl areas of the bus ness, collaborating with senior managemant acrass the Group, and
working closey with the Talent, HR and Resourcing teams.

Anti-harassment and bulying

All3Media iscommilted to upholding the pring ple of equatopportunities and we oppose all forms of discrimination. The Group's
anti harassment and bullying policy dovetails wth the Group's equal opportunities policy, dwers ity and inclusion pohey and
disciplinary policy. The Group is comm 1ted to providing a working environment that is free from bullying and harassment and
ensuring everybody who works for the Group in whatever capacity is treated with dignity and respect.

Everybody working m any capacity for the All3Media Group has a specific responsibility to operate within the boundaries of the
Group’s ant! Harassment and bullying poSicy. Everybody has a personal responsibility to ensure that their own behaviour and
treatment of others is dignified and respectful at all times. hdividuals are encouraged to speak out in the event that they
experience any form of inappropriate behav our or witness unacceptable behaviour in athers in order to support effarts in tackhing
and preventing bullying and harassment in whatever form it may take. Managers must ensure that all staff undarstand the
standards of behawour expected of them and to take action when behaviour falls below its requirements.

Staif are encouraged to disclose any instances of harassment or inappropriate behaviour of which they become aware to their
Manager, their Company HR representative or to Ali3Media Group HR. Whare individuals fe¢tunable to raise their concerns with
anybody with n their Company or at Al3Medsa, the Group has a free bullying and harassment compaints helpiine, wh chiis run
independently by an arganisation called TellJane. This is a separate service and externaiof the All3Media Group Tell Jane can also
provide Group companies with bespoke anti harassment and bullying training for both staff and freelancers,

Where an individual has cancerns that they believe may amount ta whistieblowing, there i5sgnpost ng to the Whistleblowing
polizy. The All3Media Group has a separate whistleblowing support line, run by Protect, an ndependent whistleblowing charity.

The Group provides an Assistance Programme with LifeWorks which s available Lo everybody working for the All3Media Group
regardless of the type of contract they are employed or engaged under, The Assistance Programme provides immediate and
confidential halp for any work, hea th or ife concern and offers access to up to six counselling or CBT sessions. The Assistance
Programme can be accessed 365 days of the year, 24 hours a day and is available by telephone, web, ar mobile app. The Assistance
Programme remains available 1o those who leave the Group, for a further 18 months after an end date.

Contact deta is for the Assistance Programme, Tell Jane and Protect helplines are mcluded in the Peaple Handbook and are aiso
accessible in the Knowledge Library (intranet}on the Group's communications platform; Workplace Now,

The anti harassment and bullying policy is regularly reviewed by the Group and the Group takes steps to manitor is
effectiveness.

Employee nvolvement

The Group has a comprehensive People Handboak, which 1s updated in line with changes in statute and reissued twice a year. The
Group 330 1ssues management gudance documents which prowides step by step instruction on handling comphance and
employment matters, such as right to work and sponsorship procedures.

There are 3 number of initatives across the Group which enzourage employee involvement, for example, a Group level health and
safety forum and a head of production warking Group These mutiatives provide an apportun gy for the operating cempanies in the
Group to share and discuss current practices and industry changes.

The Group 1s connected via Warkplace Now, a global platform to suppeort cannectiaty

Talent and Training Initiatives

During 2022, The Group's productions paid into the relevant industry funds; Unscrnipted UK productions contribute 0.25% of the
comm ssion budget into a fund, with the contnbutions equally split between the broadcaster and production company; and the

Group drama companies were active contribusars ta the High-End TV (HETV) Train ng fund for scripted production.

in addition to the industry funds contributions, the Group participates in various industry placement programmes, working with
many stakeholders and diversity nitiatives.

10
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Directors’ report (continued)

Talent and Tralning Initiatives (continued)

in 2022, the Group supported:
¢ The Scottish PACT Trainee Scheme (in collaboration with Creative Scotland).
s A Grierson Trust trainee, with a four week placemant at Wise Owl in Leeds.
Royal Television Soc ety 's Bursary Scheme for undergraduates from socio economic disadvantaged backgrounds.
Development of the Rayal Television Society's Training Academy and new min] MBA programme.,
Edinburgh Internationa’ Television Festwal’s (EITF} online training programme, The Network, which supported 30 new
entrants into the industry.
»  New Voices Awards {Drama Scripted and Comedy), a further Edinburgh initiatwe, which Is a celebration of merging
writers, presenters, and Qirectors from underrepresented backgrounds.

Other 2022 initiatives included.

®  Parinering with the National Film and Television School for its Writing TV Pitot and TV Drama.

®  Supporting ltonic Steps, a local south London enterprise scheme, which supports young people from disadvaniaged
backgrounds.

e Contributing to the British Forces Broadcasting Services Academy’s inaugural Production Manzagement training course for
veterans wanting to transtion into the 'ndustry.

*  Delivering six management courses across the Group in Creative Leadership, Effective Management and Leading High
Petformance.

* 32 people quakfed as Mental Health First Aiders across the Group with a refresher course and Managers Mental Health
Awareness courses also available.

Carbon and Environmental Reporting

The Group is committed to contributing to eavironmental sustainability, conducting #ts business in a responsible way, and
minimising any negative impact on the enviranment. The Group has an Environmema! Sustanability Policy identilying Group aims
and operating campany abjectives. The Group has participated in the sector wide Albert consortium since its inceplion in 2011,
with an aim to creating positive change Lo protect the envronment.

Through Albert, the Group uses the anline carbon calculator tool to assess the environmenta! impact of individual productions This
data is combined with bath production and non -product'an Financial data points, to bu-ld an accurate picture of our environmenta’
impact as defined by against the Green House Gas Protoca’.

The Group’s Net Zera Strategy is identifying what it would take for the A13Media Group to achieve a science-based target of Net
Zero carhon omissions globally by 2030, Accurate, science-based data underpins our strategy, working with environmental data
experts to ensure that the Group has the corract systems and measures in place to check our progress. Running in tandem with a
better understanding of our impact, is a3 development of strategies and palicies, both internal and spanning our value chains, to
drive deep strategic decarbonisation,

The Group is committed to implementing an energy management system (EnMS) in our offices which is compliank with industry
standards and regulations and are switching to green energy supplers, reducing our water use. recycling our waste, and promoting

smarter business travel solutions at all properties

The Greup has followed the 2022 UK Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines and has used the 2022 UK Government's
conversion faciors for campany reporting.

33
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Directors’ report {continued)

Carbon and Environmental Reporting {centinued)
The Group hasused the control approach, whereby the Company account s for 100 percent of the GHG amssians {and energy) over
which & has control. The report is at Group leveland includes information of subsidiaries who are required to repon.

Type of emission Activity kWh litres 1CO2e % of total
Natural gas 1,067,374 - 195 35 6%

Scope 1 Propane Gas - 14,284 22 4.0%
Sub-total 1,067,374 14,284 217

Scope 2 Electricity 1,706,609 . 330 60.4%

Total gross emissions 2,773,983 14,294 547 100.0%

ntensity metric

Number of employees 918
Tonnes of CO2e per employee 050
Note:

1 The table above i zudes all subsidiaries deemed to be ‘large’ under the terms defined in the Compan‘es Act,

2 We have chosen the metric gross ghobal scape 1 and 2 emissions in tonnes of CO2e per tonne per emp loyee as this best
repre sents the engrgy consumptian for our business and in our industry sector.

Going concern

The Group has net liabilities of £180.8m at 31 December 2022. The Group’s fiabilities nclude £735 8m of loans from banks and
sharehalders that are not repayable before 2027. Management has undertaken a reforecast of 2023 and 2024 under a range of
potential scenarios. The resulting impacts have been compared to the Group's funding sturces, compris ng a revelving credit
facility of £50.0m (which was £32.5m drawn as at 31 December 2022}, and shaw that the Group can continue as a geing concern
and meet its liabilities as and when they fall due for a period of not jess than 12 months following the date on which the Report and
financial statements of the Group are signed.

Through the analysis, which included the simulation of a plausible downside scenano, the Directors have verified that the Campany
and the Group have sufficient cash fiow resources to maintain operations for the foreseeable future. The Daectors therefore
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Report and financial statements.

Dividends
Total dividends of £ni1 {2021: £12.7m} were paid by the Company during the year to 31 December 2022. Total dividends of £9.5m
{2021: £9.4m| were paid by subsidiaries to their minordy shareholders during the year to 31 December 2022.

Note that the fnancial risk management and future deve’opments are currently d sclosed n the strategic report.

Directors

A st of Directors who served during the year and up to the date of signing of the fnanaaf statements is shown on page 3 of the
financal statements.

The Group mamta ns habilty insurance for its Directors and Cfficers, which 15 a third party indemnity provision for the purposes of

the Companies Act 2006. The policy was in force duning the year and up to the date of approval of the Report and financia
statements

12




DLG Acquisitions Limited
Report and financial statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Directors’ report {continued)

Statement of directors’ responsihilities in respect of the financial statements
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Repart and financia! statements ' accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare fnancial statements for each financial yaar. Under that law the d rectors have
prepared the Group and the Company firancial statements in accordante with UK-adopted international accounting standards

Under company law, Directars must not approve the financial statements unless they are sat<fied that they gwe a true and fa r
view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the proft or loss of the group for that period. in preparing the
fnanal statements, the Directors are required to.

»  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+  state whether applicable UK-adopted international accounting standards have been followed, subgect to any matersal
departures disclosed and explained in the firancial statements,

+  make jJudgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

+ prepare the financial statements on the gong concern bass un'ess it s inappropriate to presume that the group and
company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for safeguard ng the ass€ts of the Graup and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and det ection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are also responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are suffic.ent to show and explain the Group's and
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ime the financial pos-tion of the Group and Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006

Directors’ confirmations
In the case of eath Director in office at the date the directors' report Is approved.

® 5o far as the Drector 15 aware, there is na re‘evant audut Information of which the Group’s and Company’s auditors are
unaware; and

*  they have taken altthe steps that they ought to have taken as 2 Director In order to make themselves aware of any refevant
audit informatwan and to establish that the Group’s and Company’s aud tors are aware of that irformation_

Independent auditars
The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have ind cated their willitgness to be rezppointed for another term and appropnate
arrangements are ba ng made far them to be deemed reappointed as auditors in the absence of an Annuval General Maeting

The Director s tonfirm that to the best of our knowledge:

1.  thefinancial statements, prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards, give a true and far
v'ew of the assels, habilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole;

7 the strategic report sncludes a fair review of the development and performance of the busness and the position of the
Company and the undertakings included in the consol dation taken as a whole, together with a description of the pr.neepalt
risks ant uncertainties that they face; and

3. the report and financial statermants, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and grovide the informatan
necessary for shareholders to assess the company’s performance, business model and strategy.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf.

An Mfingan (May 12, 2023 10:22 GMT+1)

Anil fhingan
Director
12 May 2023
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Report and financial statemenis for the year to 31 December 2022

Independent auditors’ report to the members of DLG Acquisitions Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In gur opimon, DLG Acquisitions Limited's Group finaneial statements and Company financial statements (the "financial statements”}:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of the Group's loss
and the Group’s and Company’s cash flows for the year then ended;

« have been properly prepared n accardance with UK-adopted international accounting standards as applied in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

+ have been prepared in accordance wih the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

we have auditad the financial statements, included withic the Report and financiat statements {the “Annual Report”}, which
comprise; Group and Company balance sheets as at 31 December 2022; the Group income statemant, Group statement of
comprehensive income, Group and Company cash flow statements and Group and Company statements of changes in equity for
the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in atcordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) (*ISAs {UK)") and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under 154s {UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion,

Independence
Woe reamained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial

statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled aur other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.,

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt an the group's and the company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised far 1ssue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have cancluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate,

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the group's and the
company's ability Lo contmue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going cancern are described in the relevant sections of
this report,

Reporting on other information

The ather information comprises alf of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statemeants and our auditers’
report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the other information. Qur opinion an the financial statements does not cover the
other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, extept tc the extent otherwise explicitly stated in thig
report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection wth our audit of the hinancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obitained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. H we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we arg
required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this ather infarmation, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities




OLG Acquisitions Limited
Report and financial statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Independent auditors’ report to the members of DLG Acquisitions Limited
(continued)

Reporting on other information {continued)
With respect to the Strategic report and Directors™ report, we 3ls0 considered whether the disclosures required by the UK Compan s
Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertakan in the tourse of the audit, the Compantes Act 2006 requ res us 3o to report certan opstuans and
matters as described below,

Strategic report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given i the $trategic report and Directors’
report for the year ended 31 December 2022 is consistent w th the financial statements and has been prepared In accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Directars’ report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained mare fully in the Statement of Directors' responsibilities in respect of the fimancial statements. the Directors are
responsible far the preparation of tha financia! statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satished that
they give a rrue and faw view. The Diréctors are a'so responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable
the preparaton of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether du# to fraud or erfor.

In preparing the financial statements, the irectors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Company’s abshity to cont nue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
thedirectors ether intend to liguidate the group or the company or to cease operat ons, or have no reahstic afternative but to do so

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to cbtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free fram matenal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an dudiars’ report that includes our cpinion. Reasonable assurance 15 a
high level of assurance, but 15 not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 15as {UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arsse from fraud or error and are considered material i, individualy or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to mfuence the etonomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Sinancias
statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are mnstances cf non-comp'iance with faws anc regulations. We desgn procedures in hne with our
responsibilities, cutlined above, to detect materia® misstatemerts in respect of irregularities, mcluding fraud. The extent to which
our procedures are capable of detecting rregu arit s, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the Group and industry, we idertified that the principal nisks of non-complance with laws and
regulations related to the Companies Act 2006 and tax ‘egii'ation, and we considered the extent to which non.compliance might
have a material effect on the financ al statements. We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunties for fraudu'ent
manipulation of the financial statements {incuding the nsk of override of controls), and determined that the principa’ risks were
related to posting inappropriate journal entries to revenue and management bias in accounting estimates. Audit procedures
performed by the engagement team included:

+ Discussions with management ncluding tonsideration of known or suspected instances of non-comgpliance with laws and
regulation,

= Identifying and testing journals, in particular journal entries posted with unusual account combinations,

e Challenging assumptions and judgements made by managemert in their sighificant account.ng estimates,

« Reviewing financial statemeant d'sclosuret and testing 1o supporting documentation o assess compliance with applcable laws
and regulations.

15



DLG Acquisitions Limited
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of DLG Acquisitions Limited
{continued)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of tha financial statements (continued)

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less lkely to become aware of instances of non.
compiance wkh laws and regulations that are not clasely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial statements
Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is hugher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for ex ample, fargery or intentonal musrepresentations, or through coelluson.

A further description of our responsibilities for the aud & of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at:
www.frc.org uk faudaorsresponsibliities. This description forms part of our auddors’ repert

Use of this report

This report, includ ing the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as @ body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companles Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in gring these gpinions, accept or assume
responsibilty for any other purpose or to any other per son to whom thi report s shown or into whose hand s it may come save
where expre ssly agreed by our prior consent o writing

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 axception reporting

Und er the Compan s Act 2006 we are required t¢ report Lo you K, in our opinion:

= we have not obtained all the information and expl ions we require for our audit, or

e adequate account ng records have not been ke pt by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have nat been received from
branches not visted by us; or

s certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* the comgany financialstatements are not [n agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility.

75

Philip Stokes (Senior St;l-\-norv Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Aud Rors
London

12 May 2023
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Group income statement

Cantinuing operatians

Revenue

Cost of Sales

Gross profit

Admnistrative expensyes

Other operating income
Amortisation of intangble ass#ts

Group operating profit

Share of operating {loss) / profit of joint ventures
Share of operating loss of astouates

Total operating profit: Group and share of joint ventures and associates

Finante mcome
Finanze costs

Loss before tax
Tax tharge on loss
Loss for the year fram continuing operations.

Loss for the year
Less: Non-controlling interests

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company

Note

12

15

10

Rastated *
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 1021
£000 £'000
1,020,793 866,570
{757,330) (640,120
263,463 226,450
{216,805) (191,010)
207 111
(6,394) {9,944)
40,471 25,554
(220) 802
(88) (219)
40,163 26.137
15,088 21,933
{84,973) (65,015)
[29,727) {16,945)
(9,425) {1,299
{39,152) (18,244}
{39,152) (18,244)
(20) {175)
{39,172) (18,419)

* The comporatives have been resiated to correctly present Staff costs amounting to £13,277,000 within Cost of Soles, rather than
Administrotive costs. The restatements have po impact on the bolance sheet nor the cosh flow stotement
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Group statement of comprehensive income

Loss for tha financial year
-Group
- Joint ventures

Agsoriales

Total loss for the financial year
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Exchange d#ference on retranslation of net assets of subsidiary undertakings
- Other reserves movement

Total othe: comprehenswe (loss)/income

Total comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive loss artributable to:
-Qwmners of the parent
Non controlling interests

Total comprehensive loss

Year ended Year endad
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
£000 £'000
{38,844) {18,827)
[220) 802
(88} {219)
{39,152) (18,244}
{1,030) 2,280
{1,030) 2,280
{20,182) {15,964)
{40,288) {15.982)
106 18
[40,182) {15,964)
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DLG Acguisition s Limited
Report and financ al statements for the year ta 31 December 2022

Group balance sheet

Registration aumber; 09023753
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note £000 £000
Non-curvent assets
Goodwill and intangihle assets 12 535,605 532,036
Property, plant and equipment i3 15,257 15,884
Right of use assets 14 37,459 39,995
Investments in associates 15 2,944 1,862
Investments in joint ventures 15 742 962
Trade and othar receivables 18 2,107 1,949
Deferred tax assets 20 15,682 16,445
610,836 609,133
Current assets
Ieventories 16 267,402 175,714
Trade and other recewables 17 361,476 290,090
Carporation tax asset 2,006 1,239
Cash and cash equivalents 81,641 82,793
712,525 549,896
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables: due within ong year 22 (536,712} (484,745)
Lease hab:lies 14 {10,043} {10,335)
Corparation tax liabilities {1,869} {2,076)
Borrawings 19 {93,590} {71,962)
{642,214} (569,118)
Net current assets / [liabilities) 70,311 (19,222)
Total assets less current liabilities 681,147 589,911
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables: due after maore than one year 21 (62,699) [36,505)
Lease liabilities 14 [39,871) 42,771)
Provisions for liabilities 24 (12,356) {5.861}
Barrowings 19 (747.048) {635,959}
(861,974) (721,097}
Net liabilitias {180,827) {131,186)
Non-contralling interests [2.340) {2,234)
Net liabilities attributable to owners of the Company {183,167) {133,420}
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 25 3 3
Share premium account 26 1 1
Accumulated losses 26 {183,171) {133,424}
Total eguity attributable to owners of tha Company {183,167) {133,420)
Nan-cantrolling interests 2,340 2,234
Total equity 26 {180,827) {131,186}

7
The financial statements on pages 88 to 78 were approved by the Board of Directors on 12 May 2023 and signed an its behalf by:

AnilRingan ‘Way 12, 2023 1022 GiaT-1
Anil Jhingan
Director
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Company balance sheet

Registration rumber: 09023753
as at 31 Dacember 2022

Note 2022 2023
E'000 £000
Non-current assats
nvestmants 15 697,921 605,802
Teade and others recervables 18 26,594 37,110
Oeferred tax 3ssets w0 . 2,035
724,515 644,947
Currant assets
Trade and other recervables 17 69,799 395,545
Corporation tax asset - -
Cash and cash equivalents 184,638 140,804
254,437 536,349
Current liabiities
Trade and other payables: due within one year 22 (141,600) {458,731)
Borrowings 13 (31,293) {31,293}
{172,893) (390,024)
Net current assets 81,544 46,325
Total assets Jess current liabifities 806,059 691,272
Non-current liabilitias
Trade and other payables: due after more than one year 21 {17,946} 6,231)
Deferred tax lisbiltes ] {2,830} -
Borrowings 19 (722,826) (631,889)
(743,402) (638,120}
Net assets 62,657 53,152
Capital and reserves
Caledwp share capital 25 3 3
Share premium account 26 1 1
Retamned earnings 26 62,653 $3,148
Total equity 62,657 53,152

7
The financial statements on pages 3 to 78 were approved by the Board of Directors on 12 May 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

A é‘- S0 Blay 17 20231022 GV

And Jhingan
Director




DLG Acgusilions Limated

Report and financial statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Group statement of changes in equity

At 1 January 2021

Comprehensive (loss)fincome -

-{Loss)/profit for the fnancral year

Other comprehensive income/{loss).
Other reserve movements

Total comprehensive {loss!/ncome

Share premium reduction

Tronsactions with owners®

- Dwvidends to shareholders

- Dividends to subsidlares’ non controlling
interests

Tatal transact'ans with owners

At 31 Decembey 2021

At 1lanuary 2022

Comprehensive {loss)/income.
{Loss)/profit for the financial year
Other comprehensive income/floss)-

- Currency translation differences
Total comprehensive {loss)/income

Share premium reduction

Transactions with owners '

- Dividends to shareho'ders
Div dends to subsidiares’ non cantrolling
interests

Totastransaction s with owners

At 31 December 2022

Total equity
Called-up Share attributable Non-

share premium  Accurmnulated to awnersof  contrelling Total
capital account losses the Company interest equity
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
3 218,478 {313,811) {95,330) 2,216 {93,114)
- {15,419) (18,419) 175 (18,244)
- 2,437 2,437 (157) 2,280
15,982} {15,982} 18 {15,964}

(218,477) 718,477 -
{12,719 {12.719) (12,718}
{9,389} (9,389) {9,389)
- (22,108) {22,108) (22,108}
3 1 {133,424) {133,426) 2,234 (131,186)
3 1 (133,424) {133,420} 2,234 (131,186)
- - {39,172} {39,172) 20 39,152}
- - (1,116} {1,116) 86 (1,030}
- - {40,288} {40,288} 106 {40,182}
{5,459) {9,459) - (9,459)
- . {9,459) {9,459) - {9,459}
3 1 {183,171) (183,167} 2,340 {180,827}
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Report and financial statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Company statement of changes in equity

At 1 lanuary 2021

Comprehensive (loss) / income.

-Profa for the financial year
Total comprehensve ingcome

Share premium reduction

Tronsactions with owners:
- Dividends to shareholders
Yota! transactions with owners

At 31 December 2021

At 1 January 2022

Comprehensive income:
Profit for the financial year

-Other reserves movement

Totalcomprehensive income

Tronsactions with gwners:
Dwidends to shareholders
Total transactions with owners

At 31 December 2022

Called-up Share fetained Total

share capital premium earnings / equity

£'000 account {accumutated £'000
£'000 losses}
£000

3 218,478 [152,813) 65,668

203 03

203 203

- {218,477) 218,477 -

- (12,719) 112,719)

- (12,719) 112,719)

2 i 53,148 53,132

3 3 53,148 53,152

- - 7,005 7,008

- - 2,500 2,300

- - 9,505 9,505

3 1 62,653 62,657

3 1 62,653 61,657
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Repart and financial statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Group cash flow statement

Operating activities
Cash generated from operaticns
Income taxes paid

Payments related to deferred considerzt:on and put and calt options

Net cash generated fram operating activities

Investing activities

Dividends received from associates

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of intangble assets

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Acguisition of subsidiaries aet of cash acquired

Amaounts [paid; / received to joint ventures and associates
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Interest paid

Nat settlement of swaps

Oividends paid to shareholders

Owidends paid to subsidiaries’ non-controlling interests
Increase in borrowrings

Proceeds on issue of shareholder loan notes

Payments made on lease liabil ties

Net cash used in from financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalants

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash eguivalents at end of year

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

Note ' €000 £'000
27 64,323 68,472
{3,324) (7,791}
{56,975) (21,132}

4,024 39,549

153 600

168 21
(4,438} (1,343
(34,552) (4,894}
3,167 (929

(625) 102

3,217 679

(2,910) {5,764)

{25,960} (20,681)

{9,608) {9,241)

- (12,719)

{9,506} (9.389)

- 12,589

55,000 17,247

(14,114) {14,696)

{a,188) {36,890)

{3.073) {3,105)

82,793 86,650

1,922 (752)

27 81,641 82,703
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Company cash flow statement

Note

Operating activities

Cash {used in)/generated from operations 27
ncome taxes received

Paymentsrelated to deferred consideration and put and call options

Net cash used in from operating activities

Investing activities

Dividends received from subsidiaries

Acquisition of subsid ares

Interest received

Amounts recewved from intercompany borrowings

Met cash generated from/{used in) in investing activkies

Financing activities

Interest paid

Net settlement of swaps

Equity dividends paid

Payments against intercompany borrowings
ncrease in borrowings

Proceeds onissue of shareholder loan notes

Net cash generated from financing activities
Net increase In ¢ash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivatents at end of year 27

Yaar anded Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
£000 £'000
(13,375) (5.580}
- 142
(36,556) (17,823)
(49,931) [23,261)
31,689 41,533
- 8.447)
2,296 99
11,000
44,985 33,185
{21,585) {18,556)
{9.607) {9,241)
- (12,719)
{3,006} 15,951
- 12,500
£5,000 17,247
20,802 5,182
15,856 15,106
72,312 56,444
(2) 762
88,166 72312
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Notes to the financial statements
1. Gencral information

DLG Acquisitions L:mited {registered number 09023753) (the “Company”} is a company incorporated in the Un'ted Kingdom and
domiciled [n England and Wales under the Companies Act. The Company is a private company lumited by shares The address of the
registered office is given on page 3 The nature of the Group’s operations and principal activities are set out in the Strategic report
onpages4to 8,

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that is the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Group operates Foreign operations are included in accordance with the policies set out in note 2

2. significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

Accounting palicies that relate to the financial statements as a whole are set out below, whi’e those that relate to specific areas of
the financial staternents are shown n the correspond ng note Al accounting policies have been consistently appled to all the years
presented.

The financial statements have been ve been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards and w:th
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as appl'cable to companies reporsting under those standards

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, modified by revaluation of financial assets and financia®
liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss {as applicable}. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services. The pancipal accounting policies adopted are set cut below

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in
its entirety, which are descr'bed as follows

. Level 1 inputs are quated prices (unadjusted) in actve markets for identical assets or Habilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date:

. Level 2 inpuls are nputs, other than quoted prices ncluded within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or dabllity, either
directly or indlrectly, and

. Level 3 ‘nputs are ungbservable inputs for the asset or fability.

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabikty in an orderly transaction between market
participant s at the measurement date. regardiess of whether that price 1s directly observable or estimated us-ng another valuation
techniqua in eitimating the fair value of an asset or a hability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
tiahility if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liabi'ity at the measurement
date

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financ al statements is determined on such a basis, except for
shar&-based payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value i vse i
145 36.

New standards and interpretations nat yet adopted

A number of interpretations and revisions to exist'ng standards have been i1ssued which will be applhcable ta the Group's financ-al
statements in future years, but will not have 2 mater'a’ effect an reported profit or equity or on the disclosures In the financia
statements.

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consohdate the financial statements of DLG Acquisitions Limited and all its subsidiary undertakings
drawn up to 31 December 2022. No profit and loss account is presented for DLG Acquisitions Limited as permitted by section 408 of
the Companies Act 2006.

Subsidiaries are inc/uded in the Group's financial statements using the acquisition method of accounting. The results of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are consolidated from the effectve date of acquistion or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate. Purchase consideration is aliocated to the assets and liabilities on the basis of therr fair value at the date of
acquisikion. All wtra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

"
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consalidation{continued)

Entities in which the Group holds an interest an a long term basis and are jointly contralled by the Group and one or more ventures
under a contractual arrangement are treated as joint ventures. In the Group financial staternents, joint ventures are accounted far
using the gross equity method.

Entities, other than subsidiary undertakings or joint ventures, n which the Group has a participating interest and over whose
operating and financial policies the Group exercises a significant influence, are treated as assouates. In the Group financial
statements, associates are accounted for using the equity method.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures to bring the
accounting policies used into line with those used by the Group.

Revenue recognition

The Group derivesitsr from the fer of goods and services ta its customers The Group recegnises its revenue and
attributable profit based on the satisfaction of performance oblgations, and an assessment of when control is transferrad to the
customer.

Customer contracts come in a variety of forms across the Group but primarly fall into three categories; commissioned finished
peogrammes, distribution by third parties, and distribution by the Group. For each contract, a set of performance obligations is
identified, and a portion of the transaction pace 1s assigned to each, Transaction prices will generally be fixed In the contract, but
where variable consideration exists, an estimate of its value will be included. Revenue and the attributable profit are recognised on
the satisfaction of the Identified obligations. Transaction prices are calcufated exclusive of VAT and equivalent sales taxes.

for commssioned finished programmes, the Group considers it has fulfilled its performance obligations at a point in time on
delivery of each episode to the customer, Both under and overspends are accounted for once known and are recognised in
accordance with the episod c de ivery pattern. Provision is made for any loss making comtracts as soon as identified {i.e. expected
overspend is in excess of criginally anticipated margin).

Revenues on programmes d strbuted by third parties and other anciHlary revenues are recagnised once the entity has been notified
of sums due to it.

For finished programmes and formats dstrbuted by the Group, revenue is recognised once contracted, provided that the product
is available for exploitation by the customer and the license period has commenced.

Cost of sales
Cost of sales are racognised 1n | ne with the attrrbuted revenue recognised in the year, for each type of revenue received in the
year. Please refer to Revenue recognition account ing pobey for details of recognition.

Goodwill

Purchased goodwil: arising on the acquision of subsidiary undertakings and businesses representing any excess of fair value of
consideration over the far value of net assets acquired is capitalised as an intangible asset and amartised over its useful economc
ile. The balance of goodwdtand other ntangible assets 1s reviewed for impairment on an annual basis and written dewn to s
recoverable amount if events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying value may not be recoverable.

Other intangible assets

Programme title ntangib le assets are recognised at fair value on the acquisition of a business and are amortised on a straight \ne
basis over the expected usefu! ecanomic ife of the titles, typically twa to seven years. These assels are tested for Impalrment at Jeast
annually if indicator s for impairment are present, for nstance the de-comenissioning of a specific prograrmme title. Intellectual
praperty is generated on capitalisatian of specific content creation costs. It is amortised on a straight-kne basis over the expected
useful economic life of the content, typically two to three years, once the asset is avadable to use.

Camputer software intangibles are generated on capitalisation of internally-generated costs which occur during the application

deve bpment stage. Software costs incurred durning the preliminary project and post Implementation stages are expensed as
incurred. Any ‘off the shelf software purchased can only be capitalised as an intangble asset if # is expected 1o generate future
economic benefts. They are amortised on a straight line basis over the expected useful economic |ife of the content, typically twe to
three years, once the asset is available to use .
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2. Significant accounting policies {continuad}

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accurnulated depreciation Cost compr:ses the purchase price of the asset and
directly attributable costs in bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management

Depreciation
Depreciat on s calculated to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment evenly over their estimated useful lives at the
following annual rates:

Freehold property Qver 50 years
Leasehold improvements 20 - 50%
Furniture, fixtures, plant and equipment 20-50%
Motor vehicles 20 -25%

The carrying values of property, plant and equ pment are reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate
the carrying va Le may not be in line with the remaining estimated useful life

Fixed asset investments
Investments held as fixed assets are shown at cost less provision for impairment. The carrying values of fixed asset investments are
reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cal: depaosits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readiy
canvertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant nsk of changes in value.

Inventories
Inventories should be va'ued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value should be based an estimated selling
price less any Turther costs expected to be incurred to completion.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a kease. A contract is deemed to be or contain a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of t:ime in exchange for consideration To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether:

. the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly and should be physically
distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution
right, then the asset is not identified;

. the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset threughout the period of
use: and

. the Greup has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Group has this right when it has the decision-making rights that are
most relevant ta changing how and for what purpose the asset is used.

Operating lease rentals below the threshold for application of IFRS 1B are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis
over the period of the lease.

Pensions

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The pension cost charge disclosed in note 7 represents contributions payable by the Graup
to the fund.
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2.  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation

The tax expense for the year campnises current and deferred tax, Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that t
relates to items recogn.sed in other comprehensive income or directly in shareho'ders’ funds. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive ncome or directly in sharehalders’ funds, respect vely.

The current mcome tax charge 1s calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
in the countries where the company operates and generates taxabe income Management periodically evaluates pasitions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation s subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the bast of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorties,

Deferred tax is recogmsed on temporary dilferences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilit'es and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax Kabilit'es are not recogn sed if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill; or arise from nitial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax s determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is reaksed or the deferred incame tax liability is settled

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits wid be available against
which the temporary differences can be utizised.

Deferred income tax assets and biabil ties are offset when there is a legally enforceab’e right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilit'es and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilit es relate te mtome taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable enties where there 1s an intention to settle the balances on a net
basis

Translation of fareign currencies

fa) Functionol and presentotion currengy

tems included in the financial statement s of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environmeant
in which the Company operates (‘the functonalcuriengy’ ). The fnancial statemeats are presented in ‘Pounds Sterling’ (£), which is
also the Company's functional currency

{b} Transocuons ond bolances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the funct onalcurrency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re measured Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
rransactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liatilities denominated in foregn
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Going concern

The Group has net habil ties of £180.8m at 31 December 2022 The Group's habiities inciude £738 5m of loans from banks and
shareholders that are not repayable before 2025. Management has undertaken a refarecast of 2023 and 2024 under a range of
potential scenarios The resulting impacts have been campared to the Group’s funding sources, comprising a revoving credit
facility of £50.0m {which was £32.5m drawn as at 31 December 2022), and show that the Group can continue as a geing concern
and meet ts labilities as and when they fall due for a parod of not less than 12 months following the date on wh<h the Repart and
financial statements of the Group are signed.

Through the analysis, which included the simulation of a plausible downside scenar o, the Directors have verified that the Company

and the Group have sufficient cash flow resources to manta n operations for the foreseeable future The Directors therefore
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Report and financial statements
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. Significant arrminting prlicies {rantimed)

Financial instruments
A financial instrument 1s any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Financial asset - recognition and measurement

financial assets are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contract and, as a consequence, has a legal right to receive
cash.

All financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are attributable te the acquisition of the financial asset.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

Clossification of finonciol ossets
Classification of financial assets depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
»  those measured at amortized cost,
* those to be measured subsequently at faic value, either through other comprehensive income [FYTOCI) or through profit
or loss (FYTPL).

Financial asset ot omortised cost

A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost it both the following conditions are met:

« The asset is hald within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

» Cantractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates ta cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPFI) on
the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measuwement, such financial assets are subseguently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate {£fR} method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amartisation is included in finance income in
the profit or loss. The losses arising fram impairment are recognised in the profit ar loss.

Financial osset ot FVTOC!

A ‘financial asset’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if bath of the following criteria are met:

+ The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
= The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPIL

However, there are no instruments which have been classified under this category.

Finenciol asset at FYTPL
Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.
FYTPLIis a residual categary for financial assets.

Derecognition

Afinancial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financiaf assets) is primarily derecognised
[i.e. removed from the Group's balance sheet} when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

» The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation 1o pay the received cash
flows in full without material detay 16 a third party under a

‘pass-theough' arrangement; and either {a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or [b] the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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2. Signiticant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (cont'nued}

Impairment of financia! assets

In accordance with IFRS 9, the Group app les the expected creditioss (ECLimodel for the measurement and recagn tion of impairment
loss on financial assels measured at amortised cost e g.. mvestments, loans and bank balance.

ECL is the weighted average of differance between al contractual cash fows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receve, discounted at the originaieffective interest rate, wh the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights. When estmating the cash flows, the Group is required to consider:

+ Al contractual terms of the financialassets [incidng prepayment and extension) over the expected life the assets,

= Cash flows from the sale of collateraiheld or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

Financial liabilities - recognition and meosurement
financial abilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contract and. as a consequence, has a legal obligation to
pay cash.

financial liabifities are classified, at initial recogniton, as financial hatilites at fair value through profit or foss, loans and borrowings,
payables, ar 3s derivatives as appropriate.

Alt financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payab'es, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Graup’s financial liabilities carmgrises of loans and borrowings mcludng bank averdralts

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Ernancial lrabdiies at forr velue through profit or loss

Financial habities at fair value through profit or loss include firanci! liabilities held for trading and financial #abilities designated
upon inital recognition as at fair value through profit or lass. Financial liabiities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Loans and borrewings
After init @l recognition, interest-bear ing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the ER method.
Gaws and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liakilities are derecognised as well as through the £18 amort sation process.

Amaortised cost is calculated by ¢considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The Eifl amortisation s included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liabikity is derecognised when the ohligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financiall ab 4 ty 1s rep'aced by anather from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substant alty modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recogn’tion of the origina: hability and the recognition
of a new liability, The difference in the respect ve carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsett ng financial instruments
Financial assets and liabiities are off set and the net amount s reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceabe right

to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basts or realise the asset and settle the lability
smultaneously.

o




DLG Acquisitions Limited
Report and financiai statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments [continued)

Derivative finoncial instruments
The Group enters inte & variety of dersvat 've financias :nstruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange
rate risk, including interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps. Further details of these instruments are disciosed in rote 30,

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract s entered into and are subsequently re-measured
to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resuiting gain or boss is recognised in profit or loss immediately uniess the
derivative is designated and eHectve as a hedging instrument, in which evenl the timing of the recogmition in profit or loss depends
6n the nature of the hedge relationship.

A derivative with a postive fair value 5 recognised as a financial asset whereas a dervative with a negative far value is recogmised
as a financial iability. A derivative i1s presented as a non-current asset or a non-current iability if the remaining maturity of the
instrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected to be realised or settied with:n 12 months. Other derivatives are
presented as current assets or current liabilities.

Provisions
Provisions are recognsed when the Group has a present abligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable
that the Group will be requred to settle that obhgation and a rehab’e estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision ‘s the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. where a provision 's measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation., its carrying amount 1s the present value of those cash flows {when the
effect of the time vaue of money s material}.

When some or al: of the econom ¢ benefits required 1o settle a prowvision are expected to be recovered from a third party, 2
receivable is recognised as an asset if ¢ is virtually certain that reimbursement wall be ceceived, and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

Capital management

The Group's objactives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s zbility to cantinue as a going concern and provide
returns for sharehaolders. The Group monitors its capital on a regular and continuous basis, ensuring sufficient capita. is in pface for
the Group's ongoing trading requirements.

In addition to the above, we seek Lo enter into derivative instruments to protect against increases in the interest rates on our
variable-rate debt and foreign currency movements, particularly with respect to borrowings that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the barrow:ng entity. We have entered into derivative instruments to manage interast rate
and foreign currency exposure with respect to the US Dollar and the £uro.

Further details of the capital structure of the Group can be found in the Directors’ report on page 9.
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3, Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting pelicies, which are described in note 2, the Directors are required to make judgemnents,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, inclading expectations
of luture events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions (o accounting estimates are recognised in the
periat n which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. There are no critical judgements that have significant
r sk of causing a materialadjustment 16 the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitles within the next financial year.

The estrmates that have significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amaunts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are addressed below,

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

(a) impairment of trade and other debtors, contract assets ond intercompany balonces

The Company makes an estimate of the recoverable value of trade debtors, contract assets and intercompany balances. When
assess ng the impairment of trade and other debtors, management considers factors including the credit rating of the receivable, the
ageing profile of receivables and historical experience. The expected credit loss model was applied to trade debtors, contract assets
and intercompany babnces and the impact was not material. See notes 17 and 18 for the net carrying amaunt of receivables and
associaled impairment provsion.

{b) Recoverability of work in progress

The Company review s tha recoverability of its work in progress, derived from pragrammes during production which are included in
the Balance Sheet, on a continuous basis. The Company believes that the anticipated revenues will enable the carrying amount of
waork in progress to be recovered in full that future economic benefits will be recognised by the Group.

{c) Useful economic lives of tangible fixed ossets

The annual depreciation charge for tangible fixed assets 15 sensitwe to changes in the esumated useful economic Ives and residual
values of the assets. The useful economic ives and residual values are re assessed annually. They are amended when necessary to
reftect current estimates, based on technological advancement, future investments, economic utilization and the physical conthition
of the assets See note 13 for the carrying amcunt of the tangible fixed assets.

{d) Corrying value of investments

The Directors believe that the carrying value of the investments = supported by their underlying net assets. The D rectors carry out
an impairment assessment on the investments held if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be
recoverable In perfarming the impasment assessment, the present value of future cash flows are calculated based on three year
financial forecasts approved by a Director. Cash flows for the periods beyond the forecast period have been extrapolated using the
1 9% hstone lang term GOP annual regional growth rate The discount rate applied against the anticipated future cash flows is based
on a pre-tax estimated weighted average cost of capital of 10.6% A reasonable change in the key assumptions does not have a
s gnificant mpact on the d-fference between value tn use and the carrying value,

{e) Earn -out & put ond call arrangements

The Fair value of the liablities in respect of earn-outs and put and ca! arrangements are valued based on projected operating resuits
of the relevant entity, applied to the cakulation as determined by the relevant sa € and purchase agreement These are discounted
using a discount rate of 10%. A reasonable change in the key assumptions does not have a significant :mpact on the difference
between value in use and the carrying value .

(f) Foir value of derivatives

We perform recurring fair value measurements with respect to our des wvat ve instruments, which are carried at fair value We use
cash flow valuation models to determ ne the fair va'ues of gur interest rate and foreign currency derivative instruments. Most of
the inputs to these discounted cash flow models cons st of or are der ved from, observable Level 2 data for substant ally the full
term of these dersvative instruments This ohservable data includ es most interest rate futures and swap rates, wh ch are retrieved
or derived from available market data.

{g) Goodwiil
The key accounting estimates and judgements are as detai'ed in nete 12.

{h} intangibles
The key accounting estimates and judgements are as detailed in note 12.
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In the opinion of the Directors, the Group operated only one class of business throughout the year, namely the creation, sale and
distribut:on ef television and film programmes and other digital content and related anciilary services

An analy s of revenue by geographical market destination is given below [excluding turnover of joint ventures and assat:ates). This
is also comsidered to depict how revenue and cash flows are affected by econamic factors:

Year to 31 December 2022

Year to 31 December 2021

Origin Destination Origin Destination

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000

United Kirgdom 737,42% 317,109 576,495 303,510
Umted States of Amer <a 140,673 418,403 152,157 321,682
Rest of the world 142,691 285,281 137,918 241,378
1,020,793 1,020,793 866,570 866,570

An analysis of lags before taxation and net assets/({liabilities) by business location is givan below:

Year to 31 December 2022

Year to 31 December 2021

Profit/{loss) Net assets  {Loss) / profit Net assets
befare tax [ (liabilities) before tax / {liabilities)
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
United Kingdom 38,631 201,842 {19,964) 74.235
United States of America (687} {11,067) 1,532 {10,748}
Rest of the world 8,613 (64,285} 54,512 {15,695}
46,557 126,290 36,080 47,792
Net finance cest (69,850) - (43,081)
Intangible amortisation and Accummutated losses {6.394) - {9,944}
Bank loans and amounts owed to parent undertakmgs - {844,759) - {713,248)
Intangible assets - 535,605 - $32.036
(29,727) {182,864} {16,945) (133,420}

Contract assets held by the Group are accrued revenue of £150.5m {2¢21; £108.9m]. Contract liabilities are deferced revenue of
£275.3m {2021: £217.2m)] . Deferred revenue as at 31 December 2022 was released to revenue in the year and deferred revenue as

at 31 December 2022 relates to new cantracts entered in the year.
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5. Group operating profit

Group operating profit has been arrived at after charging/{crediting):

Note
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13
Depreciation of Right of Use Assets {IFRS 16) 14
Profi on disposalof property, plant and equipment
Arnortisation of intangible assets 12
Operating lease chorges outside the scope of IFRS 16:
- Land and bu ddings
«Equpment

Year ended
31 Decernber
2022

£000

5,295
10,247

{74)
6,394

135
303

Year ended
31 December
2021

£'000

5,187
10,542

(5}
9,944

30
48

Management deem EBITDA to be the most appropriate way of managmg performance within the business, as it is closely aligned to

our recurring cash profis of the Group.

EBTIDA is calcu lated by adjusting operating profit for interest, tax, depreciation. amortisation, exceptional iterns {one off items that
impact the Group's EBITDA for the year which do not recur and da not present a fair reflection of the performance of the Group),
transitional costs (one-off costs of redundancy, property restructuring and other restructuring), transactional costs [costs relating
to corporate development activily), costs related to deferred consideraton and put and call options, but includ ing results of joint

wentures and assaoiates. See reconc.tation of EBTIDA below:

Operating profit

Amortisation of intangible assets 12
Costs related to deferred compensation, conskderation and put & call options

Redundancy, restructuning and transactional costs (e.g. one-off restructuring)

Exceptional costs

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13
Depreciation of R ght of Use Assets | IFRS 16) 14
Management fees to sharehoiders

Share of operating results of joint ventures and associates

Prof t on disposal of property, plant and eguipment

EBITDA

Yaar anded Year ended
31 December 31 Decernber
2022 2021

E'000 £'000
30,471 25,554
6,394 9,944
22,544 16,761
12,665 11,946

- 178

5,295 5,187
10,247 10,542
3,000 3,000
{308) 582

(74} 5
100,234 83,689
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£ aoditnre’ remineratinn

The analys:s of the auditors’ remuneration = as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
£'000 £000
Fees poyoable to the Compony’s ouditors and thewr associotes for the gudit of the
Grouvp’s financiol statements
The audit of the Group consolidated financial statements 223 241
- The audit ot the Group's subsidiaries 841 947
Total audit fees 1,064 1,188
Fees payable to the Company's auditors for non-audit services.
-Other services - -
Total non-audit fees - -
Total 1,064 1,188

7. Staff numbers and costs

The average monthy number of persons employed by the Group finc’'ud ng Directors remunerated by the Group) during the year,
analysed by categary, was as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 Decamber
2022 2021
Number Number
Praduction 2,355 1,949
Administration 924 1,024
Sales 53 52
3,432 3,025
The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 Decemb 31 Decemb
2022 2021
£000 £000
Wages and sa'‘aries 201,751 178,329
Social security costs 24,021 21,189
Other pension costs 4,845 4,030
230,617 203,548

The Group also has a number of freelance staff, hired on a production basis, whose costs are included within cost of sales and are
not reflected in the above tab'e.

No Drrectors’ emoluments are paid by DLG Acquisitions Lirmated 10 its statutory Dwectors These D rectors are remunerated by

subsidiary companies of Warner Bros Discovery, Inc. and Liberty Global ple. In lieu of th's, a management fee i1s payable by DLG
Acquisitions Limited to subs diary companies of Warner Bros. Discovery, Inc. and L berty Global ple, as disclosed n note 33
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7.  Staff numbers and costs {continued)

For the year to 31 December 2022, tota! Directors’ emaluments included within the management fee tame to £1.1m (for the year

1o 31 December 2021: £1.1m)

During the same year, amounts incurred to other Non -D rector key management personnel as compensation were.

Agge gate remaneraton including long-term incentive schemes
Cempany pensicn contributions ko personal gension schemes

8. Finante income

Exchange differences gam

Bank interest receivable

Net gan arising on financial liabitities classified as Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Other interest receivable

3. Finance costs

Net loss ansing on financial liabilties chssified as Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans

Amortised fees on borrowings

Interest on loans from related parties

Exchange differences loss

Other interest payable

Interest payable on Lease Liabilities

Year endad Year ended

31 December 31 Decemher

2022 2021

£'000 £000

4,149 5926

& 3]

4,146 9,932

Year ended Year ended

21 December 32 Decernber

2022 2021

£000 £'900

- 21,012

3,508 393
11,203

377 528

15,088 21,933

Year ended Yaar ended

31 Decermnber 31 December

2022 2021

£000 £'000

- 5.760

35,484 28 859

1,330 1264

16,106 12,419
13,803

15,113 13,460

3,142 3,253

84,978 65,015
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10, Tax charge on 1055

Current 1ax
- UK corparation tax
Current tax on income for the year
Adjustment in respect of prior year
- Foreign tax
Current tax on income for the year
Adjustment in respect of prior year

Share of joint ventures’ tax

Total current tax

Deferred tax

-Onginating and reversal of temperary differences
- Adjustment in respect of prior vear

- Effect of changes in tax rates

Tatal deferred tax

Tatal tax charge on loss on ordinary activities

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 021

£000 £'000

987 2,625

{537) {257}

2,239 4,666

{309) 151

2371 7.1B5

2,371 7,185

6,911 {6,456)

578 124

(435) 446

7,054 [5.586)

9,425 1,299

The ma n rate of corporation tax is currently 19 % but this will increase to 25% from 1 April 2023. The rate increase has been
substantvely enacted and therefore the deferred tax balances have been recognised at the rate they are expected to revesse.

The tax charge/f{credit} for the year can be reconciled to the loss in the income statement s follows:

Loss on ordinary actities before tax
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 19% (31 December 2021: 19%)

Fax effects of-

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Income not chargeak e for tax purposes

Higher rates of corporation tax on overseas profits

Recognition of deferred tax on previously uniecognised ‘osses
Adjustments in respect of prior period

Current year iosses for which no deferred tax has been recognised
Overseas tax suffered {net of any creditable tax)

Tax rate difference between current tax and deferred tax

Effect af changes in tax rates on deferred tax opening ba'ances

Tax charge for the year

Year ended Year ended
31 Decembear 31 December
2022 2021
£000 £'000
(29,727) (16,945)
(5,648) (3,220)
15,961 11.09¢
(5,408) [3,965)
279 1,405
- (6,477}
(269} 18
1,868 2,313
516 442
2,561 {759}
(435) 446
9,425 1,299

Other than the amount charged to the income statement, no amounts relating to tax have been recognised in ather comprehensive

income and na amounts have been recognised directly in equity.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

11. Results attributable ta the Parent Company

The profi after tax, before external diidends, dealt w th in the financa’ statements of the Parent Company is £7,005,181 {2021:

profit of £203,481).
12. Intangible assets

Group

Cost

At 1Janvary 2021
Transfers*

Add tion s

Exchange adjustment

At 31 December 2021

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2621

Transfers*

Exchange adjustment

Amortisation provided during the year

At 31 December 2021

Net Book Value
At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020

Cost

At 1lJanuary 2022
Additrons

Acquisitan of subsidiaries
Exchange adjustment
Disposal

At 31 December 2022

Accumnulated amortsation and impairment
At 1 January 2022

Exchange adjustment

Amortisation provided durng the yaar

At 31 December 2022

Net Book Value
At 31 December 2022

At 31 Detember 2021

Computer

Goodwill Content Software Total

£'000 £'000 £000 £000
524,670 165,280 - 689,950
- - 6,159 5,159
4,769 8,122 766 13,657
{85) (16) {71)
529,384 173,402 6,909 708,695
(17,100) (146,635} . {163,735)
- - [3,994) (3,994)
- 14 14
- (8,620} {1,324) (9.5944)
(17,100) (1585,255) {5,304) (177,659)
512,284 13,147 1,605 £32,036
507,570 18 645 526,215
529,384 173,402 6,909 709,695
2.9:4 2456 1,947 7.317
- 2,656 - 2,656
42 - 4] 83
47) (47}
532,340 178,467 8,897 719,704
{17,100} {155,255) (5,304} [177.659)
. - {46} (46)
{5.183) (1,211) (6,394)
(17,1004 (160,438} (6,561) {184,099)
515,240 18,029 2,336 535,605
517,284 18,147 1,605 532,035
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12. hitangibie assels {continued}

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions is capitalised with an indefinite useful life and tested annually for impairment, For the purpases of
assessing impaicment, assels are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (‘tash generating
units'). Goodwill is allocated to the cash generating units that are expected to benefit fram the business combination.

The largest elements of the gaodwill held within the Group are £149,790,000 (2021: £145,790,000] in cespect of All3Media
International Limited, £69,846,000 {2021: £69,846,000) in respect of Lime Pictures Limited, £58,768,000 (2021: £58,768,000) in
respect of Optamen Television Limited and £54,489,000 {2021: £54,489,000] in respect of Ali3Media Deutshland Limited; per IAS 36
para 134 regarding information for each CGU with goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. An impairment review
has been conducted. The recoverable amount for goodwill has heen determined based an value in use, being the present value of
future cash flows based on three-year financial budgets approved by management.

Cash flows for the periods beyond the approved financial budgets have been extrapolated using a 1.9% historic long-term GOP annual
regional growth rate, The discount rate applied against anticipated future cash flows is based on a pre-lax estimated weighted
average cost of capital of 10.6%, which is deemed applicable to each cash generating unit as they are within the same industry and
exposed to similar risk. A reasonable change in the key assumptions, for example a 5% drop in EBITDA beyond the approved financial
budgets, does not significantly impact the difference between value in use and carrying value.

As a result of the annual impairment assessment and a review of forecast future cashflows, an impairment of £nil has been made 10
goodwill for the year to 31 December 2022 (2021: £nil).

Other intangible assets

Within content intangibie assets programme titles are recognised at fair value on the acquisition of a business and are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the expected useful economic life of the titles, typically two to seven years. These assets are tested for
impairment at least annually if indicators for impairment, for instance the de-commissioning of a specific programme title, are
present,

intellectual property is generated on capitalisation of specific content creation costs. It is amartised an a straight-line basis over the
expected useful economic life of the content, typically three yzars, once the asset is available to use.

No intangible assets are held by the Parent Company {2021: Enil).

*During the prior year, the Group concluded that certain capitalised software held in Property, plant and equipment was
appropriate to be recognised within Intangible assets
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13. Property, plant and equipment

Grou

Cost

At 1January 2021

Add tions

Acquired with subsid@anes
Transfers*

Dispasals

Exchange adjustment

At 31 December 2021

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2021

Acqu red with subsidianies
Transfers*

Charge for the year
Dsposals

Exchange adustment

At 31 December 2021

Net Book Value
At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020

Cost

At 1 January 2022
Additions

Acguired wath subsid aries
Disposals

Exchange adjusiment

At 31 December 2022

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2022
Acquired with subsidiaries
Charge for the year
Disposals

Exchange adjustment

At 31 December 2022
Net Book Value
At 31 December 2022

At 31 December 2021

Furniture,
fixtures,
Freehold Leasehold plant and Motor

property  improvements equipment vehicles Toral
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
3,833 4,669 19,790 767 29,059
351 594 3,865 99 4,909

- 792 460 - 1,252

4 (6,159} - {6,155)

(2,688) [30) (2,718)

. (412) & {406)
4,184 5,059 14,856 842 25,941
{191) {1,873} 18,569) {267) {10,900}
- {579} 448) - 1,027)

- 3 3,994 - 3,997
(1) {590} {4,354} {162} {5.187j

- {25) 2,726 26 2727

- {16} 354 (5) 333
(262) (2,080) (6,307) {a08) 120,057
1922 2,979 8,599 434 15,884
3,642 2,796 11,221 S00 18,159
4,184 6,059 14,856 842 25,941
117 301 4027 137 4,582
{1,687) {6,297) (105) [8.089)

. 267 826 79 1,172
4,301 4,340 13,412 953 23,606
(262} {3,080) 6.307) {408} {10,057}
{104) {714) (4,289) [188) {5.295)
- 1,662 8,151 85 7,899
{148) {666) {44) (856)

{366} {2,278) {5,111) {554} (8,309)
3,935 2,662 8,301 3499 15,297
3,922 24979 8,549 434 15,834
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

13, Property, plant and equipment

*During the prior year, the Group concluded that certain capitalised software held in Property, plant and equipment was
approgriate to be recognised within Intangible assets.

No property, plant or equipment is held by the Parent Company {2021: £nil).
14, Leases

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet {Group)

2022 2021
E'000 E'000
Right of use asset {NBV)
Buildings 37,155 39,519
Equipment 120 280
Vehictles 184 196
37,459 39,995
Lease liabilities
Current (10,043) (10,335!
Non-current {39,871} (42,771)
{49,914} {53,106)
Additions to right of use assets during the year were £3,374,000 {2021: £6,850,000).
Amaounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Depreciation charge on right of use assets
Buitdings 9,873 10,147
Equipment 241 273
Vehicles 132 122
10,247 10,542
Other charges
Interest expenses lincluded within finance cost note 10) 3,132 3,253
Expense related to non JFRS 16 leases 414 278
3,556 3,531

The total cash outflow for leasas m the year wias £14,114,0001{2021: £14,696,0001

The Group leases various offices, warehouses, retat stores, equ .pmént and vehiclés Rentalcontracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 6 months to 8 years, but may have extension opt ons as des¢ribed below.

Contracts may contain both lease and non lease components. The Group al ocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on ther refativi stand alone pnces However, for leases of real estate for which the Group 15 a lessee, 1t
has elected not to separate 'ease and non-lease components and nstead accounts for these as a single lease componenat.

Lease terms are negotiated on an ‘ndividual basis and conta n a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the ‘eased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not
be used as secunty for borrowing purpo fes
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)
14, Leases (continued)

Asets and habil ties arsing from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value

ofthe following lease payments:

. fixed payments including In substance fixed payments), less any lease ncentives receivable,

. variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate a3 at the
commencement date,

. amaunts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees,

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

= payments of penaluesfor terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lea se payments to be mad e under reasonably certain extension options are zlsa included in the measurement of the liability.
Thelease payments are discounted using the intecest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for lease s in the Group, the lessee’s incrementa’ borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individuai lessee
waouid have to pay to berrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value 10 the right-of-use assetin a similar economic
environment with simiar terms, security and canditions.

The Company does not held any ‘eases at 31 December 2022 {2021: none).

15. Investmaents

Company

Subsidiaries Jaint Total
Ventures

€000 £7000 £'000
Asat 1 January 2022 605,802 605,802
Additions 102,500 102,564
Impairment recogrised during the year {10,381) - (10,381)
As 3t 31 Decemnber 2022 697,521 - 697,921

An investment -mpairment has occurred due 0 the cessation of trade within an investment held by DLG Acquisitions Ltd. The relevant
investment has been raduced to nil value due to 2 lack of future cashflows expected from this entity.

Group
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
1o nt ventures 742 962
Associates 2,944 1,862
3,686 2,824
Groeup — joint venturas
2022 2021
£000 £°000
As at 1 January 962 -
Share of loss / (profit} retained by jomt ventures (220} 802
Other adjustments - 160
As at 31 December 742 962
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15.  Investments frontinoed)

The details of the joint ventures held by the Group as at 31 December 2022 are sat out below. These are al! unlisted. Shares held by
an intermediate hold.ng company are sndicated with an asterisk {*}.

Country of Voting

Name of Company incorporation rights % Nature of business

A Seat At The Table Limited England & Wales (1] *50.0% Television production
Company Stormdog Producticns Limited England & Wales (1] *S0.0% Television production
Earthshot Studios Limited England & Wales {1) *50.0% Television production
FLCP (Agatha Raisin 3) Limited England & Wales (1) *50.0% Television production
FLCP [Agatha Raisin 4) Limited England & Wales (1) *50.0% Television production
The Holiday Praductions Ltd England & Wales (1) *50.0% Television production
Studio Silverback Limited England & Wales (1) 50.0% Television product'on and distnibution
Ocean 25 Limited England & Wales (1) *50.0% Television product'an
gg:";:;"e‘ Community interest England & Wales (1) “s0.0% Televisian product'on
Studio Silverback Productions Limited England & wales (1) *50.0% Television product:on

Group - associated wndertakings

2022 2021

£000 £'000
At 1 January 1,862 2,246
Addition of associated undertakings 875 -
Profit retained for the year 314 374
Exchange adjustment 46 {57}
Dividends recewed (353} (701}
As at 31 December 1,944 1.862
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15.  Investrments {continued)

The details of the associate undertakings held by the Group as at 31 December 2022 are set out below. These ase all unlisted. Shares
held by an intermediate holding company are indicated with an asterisk (*).

Country of Voting
Name of Company incorporation rights % Nature of business
Bullion Productions Limited England & Wates (1} *24.99% Television production
Bullon Productions Netherlands B.vV. Netherlands {11} *24.99% Television production
Caravan Media Limited England & Wales (9) *19.95% Television production
Great Scott Media Limited England & Wales (1} +20.0% Television production
Kura Preductions Limited New Zealand (12) *51.0% Television production
Moon Stories Limited England & Wales (1) *13.5% Television production
Meon Stories {Australia) Pty Lid Australia (15) *135% Television production
S7oriesl Limited England & Wales (1) *27.02% Television production
Satellite Media Limited New Zealand (12) *50.0% Television production
seven Selections Limited England & Wales (1} *27.02% Television praduction
Seven Staries Limited England B Wales (1) *27.02% Television production
Silvervan Productions Limited England & Wales {14} *10.0% Television production
Story Filmns (Lizzie} Limited England & wales {1} *32.43% Television production
Story Films Ltd England & Wales (1) *32.43% Television production
Story Films ({Canoe Man) Limited England & Wales {1) *3243% Telewision production
Story Films {Black Cab} Limited England & Wales (1) *32.43% Television production
Story Films {Orto) Limited England & wales (1) *32.43% Television production
Story Fidms (The Runted) Limited England & Wales (1) *32.43% Television production
-3 Rock Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *12.5% Television production
Build Your Own Films Limited England & Wales {1) *45.0% Television production
Formation Games ;tudio Ld England B Wales (18) *2.69% Gam-e and Entertainment Studia
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15. Investments [continued)

Subsidiary undertakings

The details of the subsidiaries held by the Group as at 31 December 2022 are set cut below. Al companies are included in the
ronsolidated financial statements and the full infarmation will be annexed to the company’s next annuvalreturn. The Directors believe
that the carrying valug of the investments is supported by their underlying net assats.

Shares held by an intermediate holding campany are indicated with an asterisk {*],

Country of Voting
Mame of Company incorparation rights % Nature of business
141 Productions (Ouch) Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
3DRG Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Television distribution
Adamaarku Productions Limited England & wales (1) *80.01% Television praduction
Alchemy TV Distribution Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television production
Alexander Tailfeather Limited England & Wales (1) *50.0% Television preduction
All3Media Director 2 Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Sub-holding company
All3Media Director Limited England & Wales (1} 100% Sub-holding company
All3Media Finance Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Sub-holding company
All3Media Holdings Limited England & Wales (1} 100% Sub-holding company
All3Media Internatianal Limited England & Wales (1} 100% Television distribution
All3mMedia Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Sub-holding company
All3Media Clip 5ales Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television preduction and distribution
All3Media Rights Limited (Formerly England & Wales (1) *100% Telev'sion productlon and distribution
Newco Productions Limited)
All3Media USA LUimited England & Wales (1) *100% sub-haiding company
American Animal Pictures Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Televisian production
An Awfully Big Production Company England & Wales (1) *100% Teievision production
Limited
Angela Black Productions Ltd England & wales (1) *80.01% Telewision product on
First Floer Films Limited {prev. Angelica England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
Films Limited)
Annika Stranded Finance Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Financing vehicle
Apprentice Witch Productions Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Television producticn
Assembly Film & Television Limited England & Wales {1) 100% Te'evision production
Atrium TV Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Television production
Arctic Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Aurora Media Worldwide UK Limited England & wales (1) *50.0% Television production and distribution
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15. Investments (continued)

Subsidiary undertakings (continued}

Shares held by an intermediate holding company are indicated with an asterisk (*)

Country of ’ Voting
Name of Company incorporation rights % Nature of business
Awakerng Production Limited £ngland & wales {1} *8001% Television production
Back to Life 2 Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *R0.01% Telewision production
Bentley Productions Limited England B Wales {1) 100% Television production
Betty TV Limited £ngland & Wales {1) *100% Television production and distribution
BLU Production Ltd England & Wales {1) +100% Television production
Born Free Praductions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Brookside Preductions Limited England & Wailes (1) “100% Television production
Bunch Productions Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Telewision production
Cai Distribution Lirr.'n-ited England & Wales "1, *100% MT;Iews‘mn distribution
CA2 Productions Limited England B Wales {1) *100% Television production
CA3 Ptodutt:;-n; Limited England & Wales (1) *100% uTeIev:smn production
CHA Productions Ltd England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Champion TV Finance ktd England & Wales (1) *100% Televisicn praduction
Company Films Limited Ergland B Wales (1) 100% Televisicn preduction
Campany Pictures Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television preduction
Company Praductions {Douglas) Limaed England & Wales (1) 100% Television production
Campany Productions {North) Limted England & Wales (1) 100% Television production
Company Productions Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television production
S::.;':Zny Televisian (Northera (reland] England & Wales (1} 100% Television production
Company Tglevision Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television production
CTM 3 Productions Limited England & wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
CTM 4 Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television groduction and distribution
CTM 5 Productians Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
LTM 6 Proguctions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
CTM 7 Productions Limited - England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
CTM 8 Productions Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television production and distribution
CTM 9 Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
15, Invpstments {eontinuesd)

Subsidiary undertakings {continued)

Shares held by an intermediate holding company are ind-cated with an asterisk {*).

Country of Voting
Name of Company incarporation rights % Nature of business
CTM 10 Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television praduction and distribution
CTM 11 Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
CTM 12 Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
CTM Productions Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television production and distribution
DALG Praductions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Talevision production
Dalg 2 Productions Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television production
Delta Productions Limited England & wales (1} *100% Television production
Digital Rights Group Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Talevision distribution
DirtQuake Limited £ngland & Wales (1) *100% Television production
DLG Financing 1 Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Sub-holding company
DLG Financing 2 Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Sub-holding company
Dream Horse Films Limited England & Wales {1} *60% Televislon praduction
DRG America Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television distribution
Drive Through Productions Ltd England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Eight Bridges Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *80.01% Television production
Electric Talent Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television production
Fear Falls Producticn Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
First Loop Producticns Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Gently Praductions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Grange Hill Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *50.0% Television production
Hit Networks Ltd England & Wales (1) *73.0% SVQO0 and podcast distribution
| D Distribution Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television distribution
Imposter Pictures Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Informer Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distnibution
Invasion Pictures Ltd England & Wales (1) *50% Television production
1R2 Ltd England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
La Plante Productions Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television production
Liar Two Praductions Limited England & wales (1} *820.01% Television production
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15. Investments (continued)
Subsidiary undertakings [continued)

Shares held by an intermediate holding company are indicated with an asterisk (*).

. Country of Voting
Name of Company incorparation rights % Nature of business
Lime Entertainment Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Television production
Lime Pictures {Orama ASC) Limited England & Wales (1) *100%, Television production
Lime Pictures [HH} Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Tetevision production
Lime Pictures (Nursery) Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television praduction
Lime Pictures Group Limited England & wales (1) *100% Television production
Lime Pictures Limited England & Wales {1) 100% Television praduction
Lion Cubs Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television production
tien Cubs 2 Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television production
Lion Orama Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television production
Lion Films Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television praduction
Lion Media Limted England & Wales {1) *100% Television production
uion Television Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television production
Lion Television North Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Television production
Little Dot Studios Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Multi glatform content provider
Living Planet Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Manor Preduction Services Limited England & Wales {1) 100.0% Telewision production
Marlais Proguctions Limited England B Wales (1} “80.01% Television productian
Mavaerick Oc;eration Ouch Lirmited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Maverick Television Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television production
Mears Studios {Holdings) Limited England % Wales {1) *100% Television production and distribution
Mersey Acquisitions Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television production
Mersey P L Limited England & Wales (1) 100.0% Television proaduttion
Merton Books Limited Engtand & Wales [1) *100.0% Television production
Midsomer Murders 521 Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Midsomer Murders 522 Limged England & Wales {1} * 1004 Television production
Midsomer Murders 523 Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television produchon
Midsomer Murders 524 Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Moneda Productions Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television production
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18.  luvesuneEins (Lumim..ed)

Subsidiary undertakings [continued)

Shares held by an intermediate holding company are indicated with an asterisk (*).

Country of Voting

Name of Company Incorporation rights % Nature of business

MUD Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production

Meal Street Media Limitaq England & Wales [1} *50.1% Televisian production and distnbution
Eﬁ:‘t::ee' Productions (Broadway) England & Wales [1) | *100% Television production and distribution
Neal Street Productions Limited England & Wales [1) *100% Television production and distribution
New Pictures Limited England B Wales (1) 100% Television production and distribution
Nine Streets Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *80.01% Television production

North One Television Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television production

NPX Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production

NSM Empire Ltd England & Wales (1) *50.1% Television production

NSM The Red Zone Ltd England & Wales (1) *S01% Television production and distribution
Qbjective Media Group Limited England & Wales (1} 100% Television Production

CQF Productions {Buds) Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television Production

OF Productions (Gold) Limited England & Wales {1) "100% Television Production

OF Productions (Toast} Limited England & Wales [1) *100% Television production

OF Productions {Us) Limited England & Wales [1) *100% Television Production

One Potato Two Potato Limited England & Wales |1) *100% Television producticn and distribution
Optoman Television Limited England & Wales (1) 100.0% Television production

Penguin Films Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television praduction

Fenny Dreadful Television Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television production and distribution
Paerfect Planet Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Televisipn production

Pet Maon Productions Limited England & wales (1} *100% Television production

Pet Maon Television Limited England & Wates (1) 100% Television praduction

Polar Bear Films Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production

Portman Acquisitions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television distribution

Portman Entertainment Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television distribution

Partman Film and Television Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television distribution

Portman Medis Assets Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Television distribution
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15, Investments {continued)

Subsidiary undertakings [continued)

Shares held by anintermediate holding company are indicated with an asterisk (*).

Country of Voting
Name of Campany incorporation rights 5% Nature of business
Portman Media Assets (No. 2) Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television distribution
Portman Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Rainforest Finance Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Financing vehicle
Ravenscourt Services Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television preduction
Raw Factual Limited England & Wales (1) *52% Television production
Raw Scripted Limited England & Wales (1} *60% Television production
Raw TV Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television production and distribution
Raw 1990 Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
Raw California Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
Red Rooster Television Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television preduction
Requiem Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Residuall3 Limited England & Wales (1) “100% Adwministrative vehicle
Ridley Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Rock Ridge Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Saigon Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Serengeti Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *89.993 Television production
Shakaspeare Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
Silverback Films Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television praduction and distribution
SBF Features Limited £ngland & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
SBF Nat Productions Lirmited England & wales (1) *100% Television praduction and distribution
Sealion Productions Limited England & Wales (1} *100% Television preduction and distribution
Stateside Productions Limited England & wales {1} *100% Televsion production and distribution
Studio Larmbert Associates Limited England & Wales (1) 100% Television production and distrihution
Studio Lambert Finance Limited England & wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
Studio Lambert Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production and distribution
Studio Lambert Media Limited England & wales (1) *50.1% Televisian production and distributian
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15, Invesuneins fuundiued)

Subsidiary undertakings fcontinued]

Shares held by an intermediate halding company are indicated with an asterisk (*).

Country of Voting
Name of Company incarporation rights % Nature of business
gglalezeFrisn:::ZuL:i:‘i:tr;:i)mited (previously. England & Wales (1) *50.1% Television production and distribution
The Feed Production Limited England & wWales (1) *100% Television production
‘lril::i:.:;ne Pictures Holding Company England B Wales (1) “100% Television production
The Mersey Music Company Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Televisian production
The Mersey Television Company Limited England & wales (1) *50.0% Television praduction
The Mersey Television Group Limited England & Wales (1) *50.0% Television production
Iii:i:::rsey Television Tralning Company England & Wales (1) “50.0% Television production
The Mest Productions Limited England & wales (1} *100% Televisian production
The Tourist Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *80.01% Television production
This is Your Life Experience Limited England & Wales [1) *100% Television production
TLS1 productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
TSP2 Productions Limited England & Wales (1) *100% Television production
Two Brothers Pictures Limited England & Wales (1) *80.01% Television production and distribution
Bancroft Gold Productions Lirnited England & Wales (1) *80.0t% Television preduction and distribution
Boat Story Prouctions Limited England & Wales (1) *80.01% Television production and distribution
Unstoppable Film and Television Limited England & Wales (1) *91% Television production
Van der Valk 51 Limited England & Wates {1) *100% Tekevision production
Van der Valk 52 Limited England & Waies (1) *100% Television production
Van Der Valk 53 Limitad England & Wales (1} *100% Television production
Wereworld Productions Limited England & Wales {1) *100% Telavision production
West Road Pictures Limited England & Wales {1) 100% Television production and distribution
Westbridge Productions Limited England & wales (1) *100% Television production
Wild Britain Productions Limited England & wales (1) *100% Television productiaon
wild Chase Productions Limited England & wWales (1) *100% Television production
Wild West Finance Limited England & wWales {1) *100% Television distribution
Wing Limited England & Wales {1} "51% Digital production services
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15. Investments (continued)

Subsidiary undertakings (continued)

Shares held by an intermediate holding company are indicated with an asterisk (*).

Country of Voting

Name of Company incorporation rights % Nature of business

Wings Acquisition Company Limited England & Wales (1) 100.0% Sub-halding company

Witchery Pictures Limited England & Wales {1} *100% Television production and distribution
2eal Entertainment Limited England B Wales (1} *100% Television production

Zero Chill Productions Limited England & wales (1) *100% Television preduction

The Tourist Australia Praductions Pty Ltd | Austratia {7} *80.01% Television production

Ali3Media Deutschland GmbH Germany {3} *100% Television production

filmpool entertainment GmbH Germany (5) *93.5% Television production

fitmpoal fictian GmbH Germany (19} *93.5% Television productian

filmpool media entertainment GmbH Austria {6) *9315% Televisien production

| Care Producties BY Netherlands {11) *52.0% Television production
:I;gmt:ﬁ;\gelgium B.V. {formerly DTV Belgium (17) *100% Television production

IDTV Cumulus BV Netherlands {11} *100% Television production

DTV Film and Video Producticns BV Netherlands {11} *100% Television production

IDTV Fusion BY Netherlands [11) *100% Television production

IDTV Live 360 BY Netherlands (11} *L00% Television productian

IDTV Media Group BV Netherlands (11) *100% Television production

gﬂr:ﬂ:HMe, Myself & Eye Entertainment Germany (4) *53.5% Television production

MME Movement AG Germany {3) “53.57% Television productlon

Red Forest TV BV Natherlands (11) *100% Television production

South & Browse GmbH Germany {20] *100% Te'evision production and distribution
Tower Productions GmbH Germany (4} *100.0% Te evision production

TFS - The Fiction Syndicate GmbH Germany {21} *50.1% Television production

Magic Connection GmbH Germany (5} *50.1% Television production

Tulip Holdings BV Netherlands (11} *100% Sub-holding company

Ali3Media Deutschland Fiction GmbH Germany {22) *100% Television production

POS Video & Television B.V. Netherlands {11) *100% Television production and distribution
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18 Inwactments (rantinned)
Subsidiary undertakings (¢continued

Shares held by an intermediate holding company are indicated with an asterisk (*).

Country of Voting
Name of Company incerporation rights % Mature of business
All3Media America, LLC USA (2) *100% Television production and distribution
All3Media Internationa! America, LLC USA (2) “100% Television production and distribution
All3Media USA, Inc. USA(2) *100% Sub-holding company
Beach Life Studics, LLC USA (2) *100% Television production and distribution
Beak Street Studio Rentals Inc. USA(2) "100% Televiston production and distributlon
Bright Road Productions, Inc. UsA(2) *100% Television production and distribution
Bright Spot Content, LLC USA (2} *100% Television production and distribution
Carnaby Services, Inc, USA (2} *100% Television production and distribution
Clock Productions, LLC USA£2) *100% Television production and distribution
DLG USA Financing, LLC USA (2) 160% Sub-holding company
Dusty Rose Pictures, LLC USA (2} *100% Television production and distribution
DRG America LLC USA {8} *100% Television distribution
Island TV, LLC USA (2} *100% Television production and distribution
Lion Television, ELC USA (2} *100% Television production and distribution
Little Dot Studias, LLC USA (2} *100% Multi-platform content provider
Mavaerick Television Inc. USA {2} *100% Television production and distribution
Music to Air, Ine USA {2) *100% Television production and distribution
Neal Street Productions USA, Inc. USA {16} *100% Television production and distribution
Neon Productions LLC USA{2) *100% Television production and distribution
North One Television USA, [ne. USA{2) *100% Television production and distribution
Cbjective Producticns US, Inc. USA{2) *100% Television production and distribution
QOptormen Productions, LLC USA (2] *100% Television production and distribution
One Potato, Two Potato LLC USA{2) *100% Television production and distribution
Weddel! Sea Pictures LLC USA (2) *100% Television production and distribution
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15. Investments [continued)
Subsidiary undertakings {continued

Shares held by an intermadiate holding company are indicated with an asterisk (*}.

Country of Voting
Name of Company incorporation rights % Hature of business
Pafm Tree Pictures, LLC USA (2) *100% Television production and distribution
Raw, Inc. usa (2) *100% Television production and distribution
Striped 2ebra Productions, Inc. USA{2) *100% Television production and distribution
Studio Lambert Media, Inc USA (2} *50.1% Television production and distribution
Studio Lambert Associates USA, Inc, USA {2} *100% Television praduction and distribution
The Heust, LLC USA {2} ' *100% Television production
The Write Types, Inc. USA {2) *100% Television production and distribution
Vector Prt:;z-:lucﬁons (1 USA (2) *100% Multi-platfarm content provider
Woodman Park Productions, LLC USA (2) *100% Television production and distribution
r:lrI:il:lzdia International Asia Pacific Pte. Singapore (10} *100% Television distribution
Little Dot Studios (Asia) Pte, Ltd Singapore (10) *100% pulti-platform content provider
Burberry Entertainment Pty Limited Austrafia [13) *100% Television production
Brokenwood Productions Limited New Zealand {12} *100% Television production
Maggie Limited New Zealand {12} “100% Television production
Pam's Petting Zoa Limited New Zealand {12) *100% Television production
S.ou‘th Pzcific Pictures Investments New Zzeatand (12) “100% Sub-holding company
Limited
South Pacific Pictures Limited New Zealand (12) *100% Television praduction
Coun Pacific pictares Productions New Zealand (12] *100% Television production
South Pac fic Pictures Serals Limited New 2ealand (12) *100% Television production
Tatau Productions Limited New Zealand (12} *100% Television praduction
Weld Productions Limited New Zealand {12) *100% Television production
Golden Retriever Family Limited New Zealand (12} *100% Television production
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15 Invectments [¢entinuad)

Subsidiary undertakings (continued)

Registered Addrass Kay

(L) Berkshire House, 168 - 173 High Holborn, London, WC1V 7AA, United Kingdom

(2} 6060 Center Drive, 4th Floar, Los Angeles CA 90045, United States

(3) Ate’ierstrasse 12, 81671, Munich, Germany

{4} Gotzkowskystr.20-21, 10555, Berlin, Germany

{5} Kalscheurener Str.91, 50354 Hirth, Garmany

{6} Untere Donaustr. 13-15, A - 1020, Wien, Austria

N 7773 Argyle Street, Fritzroy, VIC 3065, Melberne, Austraa

(8) C/O GILDEA, 122 €. 42ND ST STE 4300, New York, USA

{9) Poynders End, Preston, Hitchin, England, $G4 7RX

(10) &0 Robinson Road, #02.00, Singapore 068898

{11)  Overschiestraat 176. 1062XK, Amsterdam, Netherlands

{12} 8 Tolich Place, Henderson, Auckland, New Zealand

{13)  Kew, Victoria 3101, Australia

{14) 78 Mid+Lane, London. Unitied Kingon, NWE 142

{15)  Suite 275, 10 Albert Avenue, Broadbeach QLD 4218, Australia

(16) 50 Rockefelter Plaza, 4th Floor, New York, USA

{L7) Reedlk 10, 1785 Merchtem, Belgium

(18] 6356, Fifth Floor, Suite 23 Hatton Garden, London, England, ECIN 8L

{19) Hohenzallernring 22-24, 50672 Kéln, Germany

{20) FloBergasse 2, 81369 Munchen, Germany

(21) Hildebaldplatz 15 17, 50672 Kaln, Germany

(22) Alt-Moabit 62, 10555 Berlin, Germany

16. Inventcries
Group

Wark in progres%

No inventories are held by the Parent Company (2021: £nil)

2022 2021
£'000 £/000
267,402 175,774
267,402 175,774
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17. Trade and other receivablas: dye within one year

Group Company

2022 2021 2022 2021
E'0o0 £'000 £'000 £7000
Trade receivabes 92,337 66,127 - -

Other recenvables 108,562 89503 4,397
Prepayments and accruad income 158,742 134 460 - 21
Amounts cwed by Group undertakings - 65,276 395,498
Socielsecurity and other taxes 1,825 - 126 26
361,476 290,090 69,799 395,545

Amounts owed by Group undertakings ncluded in the Company above compree a number of intescompany leans of £65,276,000
(2021-£35,443,000] and an intercompany ban was repaid in June 2022 of £ni'{2021: £360,055,000}, all of which are unsecured,

nterest free and repayable on demand.

Within gther receivables in Group above 15 £1,069,000 (2021: £n ) relat ng to derwatwe financal instruments. Withn other

receivables in the Company above is £4,339,000 {2021 £n)} relat ng to derivative financalinstruments

18. Trade and other receivables: due after more than one year

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
£'000 £'000 £'000 £°000
Trade recewables . - - -
Prepayments and accrued Income 1,373 TB4 - R
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - - 26,360 35,945
Other receivables 234 1,165 234 1,165
2,107 1,949 26,594 37.110

Amounts owed by Group undertakings nchudad in the Company above comprise an intercompany loan of £26,360,000 (2021:
£35,945,000) repayable between May 2025 and May 2026 following the settlement of all gutstanding loan amounts due under the
Senor Facilities Agreement and the Second Lien Facillities Agreement with National Westminster Bank Plc and Liberty Global
Incarporated Uimited dated 24 May 2019 and 31 May 2019 respectively. Interest is payahle on these [oans at a rate of between

EURIBOR + 3 5% and SONIA + 8.00% per annum,

Other recervables in Group and Company above 15 £234,000 (2021. £1,165,000) relating to derivative financial instruments.
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19. Borrowings

Unsecured borrowing at amartised ¢ost
Amounts owed to parent undertakings

Secured borrowing at amortised cost
Banicloans
Deferred financing fees

Total Borrowings
Amaunts due for settlernent:

Within 12 months or on demand
Current borrowings total

In more than ane year but not more than two years

In more than two years bul not more than five
years

In mcre than five years

Non-current barrowings total

Total Borrowings

Cgmpany

Analysis of borrowings by cutrency:

31 December 2022

Amaounts owed 1o parent undertakings
Bank [oans

Deferred finaneing fees

31 December 2021

Amounts owed to parent undertakings
Bank loans

Deferred financing fees

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
£'000 £°000 £'000 £°000
292,980 221,874 292,930 221874
292,980 221,874 192,330 221,874
551,779 493,374 465,060 446,636
(4,221) (5,328) {4,121) 5.328)
547,658 486,046 460,939 441,308
830,638 707.920 753,919 663,182
93,590 71,8962 31,293 31,293
93,590 71,962 31,293 11,293
11,252 2,863 {1,206} (1,206)
368,816 337,221 356,852 337,221
366,980 295,874 366,980 295,874
747,048 635,958 722,626 631,889
840,633 707.920 753,919 663,182
Sterling Euros Total
£000 £°000 £'000

292,980 - 292,980

106,459 358,561 465,060

(4,121) - {4,121)

395,358 358,561 753,919

221,874 - 221,874

106,500 340,136 446,636

{5.328) (5,328)

323,045 340,136 663,182
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19. Borrowings (continued)

Group
Analysis of borrowings by currency:
Sterling uUs Daollars Euros NZ Dollars  AUS Dollars Taotal
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 E7000
31 December 2022
Amounts owed to parent undertakings 292,980 - - - - 292,930
Bank loans 190,740 - 358,561 2,478 - 551,779
Defesred financang fees {4,121} - . - (4,121}
479,599 - 358,561 2,478 - §40,638
31 December 2021
Amounts owed to parent undertakings 221,874 - . 221874
Bank loans 135,546 2,166 340,136 - 9,526 491,379
Deferred financing fees 5.328} - - (5,328)
356,002 2,166 340,136 9,526 707,920

The principal features of the Group and Company's borrowings are as follows:

{n Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand. The average efiective interest rate on bank overdrafts approximates 3.50%
above the Bank of England base rate per annum, minimum 0%,

{i} The Group has four principal bank loans:

{a) a first hen loan of €405m The loan was taken cut on 4 June 2019 The loan s secured by pledge over the company™s
shares and intercompany receivables, the ¢arrying amount of which 5 shown sn note 19 The lean carries an interest
rate at 3.5%above 6 month EURIBOR, minimum 0%.

(] a loan of £74m_The loan was taken out on 4 June 2019 The loan is secured by pledge over the Company’s shares
and intercompany rece vables, the carrying amount of which (s shawn in note 19. The loan carries an interest rate at
8.00% above 6 -month SONIA, mnimum 0%

(£) production loans totaling £51.8m {2021: £31.1m).

{d) a loan for £11.5m is repayable nio later than 31 December 2023 at an mterest rate of 3.35% above the Bank of
€ngland Base Rate. The production loan is secured against the assets of the specific production.

{i) Amounts repayab e to parent undertakings carry interest of 5,.99% per annum charged on the outstanding loan balances

Shareholder loans at 31 Decemnber 2022 total ed £292,980,000 comprised of £276,874,000 principsl and £16,106,000
accrued interest {2021 £209,454,000 principa’ and £12,420,000 interest). Interest is compounded annually.

The weighted average interest rates paid duning the year were as follows

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

% %

Bank overdrafts 6.93 3.75
Amounts owed to parent undertakings 5.99 5.9
Bank loans 6.99 4.23
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20. Daferred tax

The feollowing are the major deferred tax habdities and assets recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the current
and prior reporting year

At Credit / At

1 January Acquisitions {charge) to Exchange 31 December

2022 / disposals profit or loss differences 2022

£000 £000 £°000 £000 £'000

Intangible assets {3,582) (148} 610 49 (3,071)
Accelerated tax depreciat ion 4,421 185 (873} 73 3.807
'FRS 16 leases 535 {(13) 27 33 582
Tax lotses 8152 - 705 57 3,914

Revaluation of financial instrumants 2,035 . (4.865) - (2,830

Shurt term temparary differences 453 {25} {2,658) 198 (2,032)
Deferred tax asset 12,014 - {7,054) 410 5370

Deferred tax asset i the Company relates to the following:

At At

1 january Acquisitions Charge to Exchange 31 December

2022 [ dispasals profit or loss differences 2022

£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £°000

flevaluation of financia! instruments 2035 (4,865} - (2,830)
2,035 - (4,865} - {2,330)

Deferred tax assets and ‘rab-lties are offset where the Group has a legally enforceable right to dé s¢. TFe following is the analysis of
the deferred tax ba ances {after offset) for fmancial reporting purposes:

2022 20231

£'000 £'000
Deferred tax liabilities inote 24) (11,312) {4,431)
Deferred tax assets 16,682 16,445
5,370 12,014

Deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses for which na deferred tax assets have been recognised are attributable to
the following:

2022 2021

£000 £'000

Unutihsed tax losses 23,267 20,720
13,267 20,720
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21. Trade and other payables: due after mare than one year

Group Company
2021 2021 2022 2021
£7000 E'Q00 £°000 £'000
Accruals and deferred income 3,462 2,691 - -
Other payables 59,237 33.815 17,946 6.231
62,699 36,506 17,946 6,231

mcluded within other payables in Group above is £42 409,000 (2021: £27,702,000) related ta put and call options and £16,829,000
{2021. £6,111,000) related to deferred consideration

Included within other payablesin the Company above is £1,117,000 {2021 : £120,000) related to put and call option liabifities and
£16,829 000 {2021: £6.111.000) related to deferred consderaton.

22. Trade and other payables: due within one year

Group Company

2022 2021 2022 2021
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000

Trade paysbles 107,976 85933 - -
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - - 35,934 337,615
Other payables 35,945 78 875 7.146 49,522

Social securty and other taxes 5,229 5541 - -
Accruak and deferred ncome 387,562 314,396 2,048 2,702
Bank overdrafts - - 96,472 68,492
536,712 484,745 141,600 458,731

Inc uded within other payables in Group and Company above & £nil (2021 . £8,112 000) relat ng to derivative financial Instruments.
ncuded within other payables in Group above is £8,115000 j2021: £41,570,000) relating to put and call opticn liabilities and
£1.666,000 {2021° £13 §32,000) related to deferred consideration. Included i other payables in the Company s £3,000,000 {2021:
£21,570,000) relat ng to put and call option liabilit es and £780,000 {2021: £13,409,000) related to deferred consideration.

Amounts owed to Group undertakings of £35,934,000 (2021: £337,615,000) are repayable within a year.

23, Obligations under leases and hire purchase contract

Totalfuture cormm tments under noncanceilable operating leases, for the Group, are 25 follows-

Land and buildings Other

2022 2021 2022 2821
£'000 E'C00 £'000 £'000

Operating leases payable:
Within one year 135 30 303 248
In two to five years - - - -
In over five years . - -
135 30 303 248

There are no obligations under operating leases i the Company as at 31 Decemhber 2022 or 31 December 2021,

]
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

23, Prowisions fon Habililies

Deferred taxation {note 20}
bilapidation prowss ons
Other provisians

There are na provisions far lizbilities in the Company as at 31 December 2022 ar 21 Decermnber 2021,

25. Called-up share capital

Group and Company

ksued ond fully pavd:

119,240 {31 December 2021 119,240} ordinary A shares of £0 01 each

119,240 (31 December 2021 119,240} ordmary B shares of £0.01 each
16,802 (31 December 2021 : 16,802} ordinary shares of £0.01 each

2022 2021
£'000 £'000
11,312 4,431
1,044 842
. 588
12,356 5,861
2022 2021

£ £
1,192 1,182
i.192 1192
168 168
2,552 2,552
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

26. Reconciliation of movements in reserves

Company
Called-up Share {Accumulated Toval
share capital premiym losses) / equity
£'000 account retained £'000
£'000 sarnings
£'000
At 1 January 2021 3 218,418 {152,813) 65,668
Comprehensive (loss)/income:
-Profit for the financial year - 203 203
Total comprehensive loss - - 203 203
Share premum reduction ™ - {218,477) 218,477 -
Tronsaclions wih owners .
- Divigdends to shareholders - - {12,719} (12,719}
Total transactions with ownegrs - (12,719) 12,719)
At 31 December 2021 3 1 53,148 53,152
At 1 January 2022 El 1 53,148 53,152
Comprehensive income:

Profit for the financial year . . 7,005 7.005
-Other reserves movement . . 2,500 2,500
Tota! comprehensive income - . 8,505 9,505

3 1 62,653 62,657
Tronsgctions with owners:
- Dividends to shareholders . - - -
Total transactions with owners - - - .
At 31 December 2022 3 1 52.653 62,657

G2
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Report and financial statements for the year to 31 December 2022

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

16. Reconcitiation of movements in resarvas {continued)

Group
Total equity
Called-up Share attributable Non-
share premium  A¢cumulated to owners of  controlling Total
capital account losses the Coempany interest equity
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2021 3 213,478 (313,811) {95,330) 2,215 {93.114)
Carnprehensive floss)fincome
-{Loss)/Profit for the financial year - - (18,419} {18,419} 175 (18,244)
Other comprehensive income/{loss).

Currency translat'on differences - - 2,437 2,437 {157) 2,280
Total comprehensive (loss)/income - - {15,982} {15,982} 18 {15,964)
Share premium reduction”® - [218,477) 218,477 - - -
Transoctions with owners.

Dradends Lo shareholders - {12,719} {12,719} - {12,719)
- Dividends to subsidianes’ non-controlling - - (9,389} (9,389) - (9,389)

interests
Total transactions with owners - - {22,108) {22,108) - {22,108)
At 31 Detember 2021 3 1 [133,424) (133,420) 2,234 {131,186)
At 1 January 2022 3 i {133,424) {133,420} 2,234 {131,186}
Comprehensive {lass)fincome:
-{Loss)/profit for the Financial year - - [39,172) {39,172) 20 {39,152}
Other comprehensive income/{loss}:
-Currency translation differences . - {1,116) {1,116) 86 (1,030)
Tota’ comprehensive {loss)/income - - {490,288) (40,288} 106 (40,182)
Share premium reduction . - - - . -
Transactions with owners.
- Dividends to shareho 'ders . - - - - -
« Dividends to subs'diaries’ non-cantrolling . - {9,45%) [9,459) . (9,459)
interests
Total transactions w th owners . - {9,459) (9,459) - (9,459)
At 31 December 2022 3 1 [183,171) {183,167) 2,340 {180,827)
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Report and fFinancial statements for the year to 31 December 2022
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

27. Notes to the cash flow statement

rou

Loss for the year

Adustments for.

Share of I ss of assotiates

Share of loss of ja nt ventures

Finance income

Finance costs

Income tax charge/ (credit)

Depreciation of properly, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right of use assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Lo s on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
{Increase}/decrease in nventaries
{Increasel/decrease in receivables

‘nerease in payables

Cash generated from gperations

Company

Praofit for the year

Adjustrents for:

fmnance costs

ncome tax charge

Dividends received

mpairmient of non turrent assets

Operating cash flows before movements in working captal

ftincrease}/Decrea se n rete vables
Increase in payables

Cash used in oparations

Year ended Year ended
31 Decemb 31 December
2022 201
£'000 £'000
(39,152) {18,244)

B8 219
220 {802)
(15,088) {21,933}
84,978 65,015
9,425 1,299
5,195 5,187
10,247 10,542
5,394 5944

(74) {s!

62,333 51,222
{50,889) 13,964
{64,248) {40,008}
117,127 43,294
64,323 68,472
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
£000 £'000
7,005 203
25,605 19.399
4,866 2,243
{61,689) (41,533)
10,381 3,104
{13,832} {16,584)
{138} 78

59S 10,928
(13,375) {5.580)
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27. Notes to the cash flow ctatement {continued)

Cash and ¢tash equivalents

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £'000 £7000
Cash and cash equivalents 81,641 82,793 184,638 140.804
Bank overdrafis {included within payables) . - (96,472 68,492}
Net cash and cash eguivalents 81,641 82,793 88,166 72312

Cash ang cash equivalents compnise cash and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts. The carrying amount of thase assets is approximately equal to thew fair value Cash and cash
equivalents at the end of the reporting year as shown in the statement of cash f'ows can be reconciled to the related items n the

balance sheet position as shown above.

Inciuded i cash and cash equivalents 1s £35,955,336 (2021: £34,869,946) held in designated segregated production bank accounts
for televis an companies that have commiss vned programmes on their behalf, These funds are under the effective management
and control of the Group under the terms of the cantracts with the television companies.

Analysis of changes In net debt
At Other At
1 January Exchange non-cash 31 December
2022 Cash flow movements movements 2022
£°000 £'000 £'0C0 £000 £'000
Group
Cash and cash equivalents 82,793 {3.075) 1,923 . 81,641
Loans from related parties {221,874) {55,000} - 116,106} {292,980;
Bank leans due within 1 year {73,168) (20,785) (976} . {94,929)
Bank loans due In more than I year {418,206) (20581} (18,425) {457,212)
Deferred fmancing fees with'n 1 year 1,206 - - 1,206
Deferred financing fees in more than 1 year 4,121 - {1,206} 2,915
Net debt {625,128) {99,441) (17,478} (17,312) [759,359)
Company
Cash and cash equwvalents 72.312 15,856 (2) 88,166
Loans from related parties {221,874} {55000} - (16,106} {292.980}
Bank leans due within 1 year {32,500} - - {32,500)
Bank loans due in more than 1 year (414,138; (18,425) (432,561}
Ceferred finance ng fees within 1 year 1.208 - - - 1,206
Deferred financing feesn more than 1 year 4,121 {1,206) 2,915
Net debt {590,871) {39,144} (18,427) {17,312) {665,754
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)

28 Contingent liabilitias
Loss absorption agreement

DLG Acquisitions and All3Medsa Deutschland GmbH, 2 100% subsidiary of DLG Acquistiens Limited, have 3 vo untary loss

absorption agreement in place such that any losses that arise in Ali3Media Deutschland GmbH are assumed by DG Acquisiions
Limited. This agreement was in place for the years to 31 December 2015, 21 December 2016, 31 December 2017, 31 December
2018, 31 December 2019, 31 Cecember 2020, 31 December 2021 and 31 Becember 2022.

29. Financial instruments
Financial instruments by category - Group

Assets as per balance sheet

As at 31 December 2022

Trade and other receivables
(excluding prepayments)
Derivative financial instruments
Cash and cash equivalents

Assets at fair

Totat

As ot 31 December 2021
Trade and other receivables
(excluding prepayments)
Cash and cash equivalents

Total

Liabilities as per balance sheet

As at 31 Detember 2022

Borrowings [exclud ng finance lease liabrlives)

Lease fiabiities

Derwat ve fmancial instruments

Trade and other payables {excluding non financialhabilities)

Total

As ot 31 December 2021

Borrowngs {exc udeng finance lease labilities)

Lease liabiliktjes

Derwatwe f pancial nstruments

Trade and other payakles (excluding non financial iiab ties)

Total

Loans and value through  Derivatives used
receivables profit and loss far hedging Total
£000 [3]01] E'000 £000
351,932 - 351,933
1,302 1,302
81,641 - - 81,641
433,574 1,302 - 434,876
263,929 263,929
82,793 82,793
346,722 - - 346,722
Liabilities at

fair value Derivatives Financial

through profit usad for liabilities at
and loss hedging amortised cost Total
£000 E°000 £°000 £'000
s {840,638) {840 638)
(49,914) {49,914)
- 1599,328) (599,328}
. - (1,489,380) {1,489,880)
{707,920} {707,920)
- {53.106) {53,106}
(6,947} {6,947}
- - (513.129) {513,139)
{6,947) 11,274,1€5) {1,281,112)




DLG Acquisitions Limited

Report and financial statement s for the year to 31 December 2022
Notes to the financial statements {continued)

29.  Finaudial instvinents (witinued)
Finangial = n

Assets as per balance sheet

As at 31 December 2022

Trade and othes recewables
[excluding prepayments)
Derwative financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalems

Total

As ot 31 December 2021
Trade and other recewables
{excluding prepayments)
Cash and cash equivalents

Tatal

Liahilities as per balance sheet

As ot 31 December 2022

Borrowings (excluding finance lease habilities)

Derivative financial instruments

Trade and other payables (extluding non-financial hiabidities)

Total

As ot 32 December 2021

Borrowings {excluding finance lease 1 ab Ities)
Derwvative financial instruments

Trade and other payakles {excluding non-financia: liabilities)

Total

Assets at fair Derivatives
Loans and  walue through used for
receivables profit and loss hedging Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £000
81,8217 - 91,821
4,572 4,572
184,638 184,638
276,459 4,572 - 281,031
431,469 431 469
140,804 140,804
571,273 - - 572,273
Liabilities at
fair value Derivativas Financial
‘through profit used for liabilities at
and loss hedging amortised cost Tatal
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
- - (850,391) {850,391}
{62,073) {63,073}
- - {913,464) {913,464)
- - (731.674) {731,674)
(6,947) 16.947)
) - (388,356) {388,356)
(6,947) - {1,120,030) (1,126,977}
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Report and fina nc'al statements for the year to 31 Decernber 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

9. Financial instrumants {continuad)
Financial jnstrumaents by maturity

The maturity of contracted cashflows associated with tha Group's financial Instruments are shown in the tables below The tables
have been drawn up based on disc ounted contractual cashflows, showing the Group’s assets and labiit’es as stated in the balance

sheet.

Grou,

As gt 31 December 2022

Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments)
Borrowings {excluding finance leases)

Lease Liabilities {IFRS 16)

Derivative financial instruments

Trade and other payables {excluding non-financial liahilities)

Tetal

As ot 31 December 2021

Trade and other recervables {excluding prepayments)
Borrowings {excluding finance leases)

Lease Liabilities {{FRS 16}

Derivatwe financiatinstruments

Trade and other payables (excluding son-financial kabilities}

Total

Company

As at 31 December 2022

Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments)
Borrowmgs lexclud ng finance leases)

Oer vative financial instruments

Trade and other payables excluding non financial iabil ties

Total

As at 31 December 2021

Trade and other rece vables (exc'uding prepayments)
Borrowings (excluding finance leases}

Derivative financ akinstruments

Trade and other payables exclud ng non financialliabilities

TFotal

Later than one
year and not

Not later than  later than five Later than five
one year years years Total
£000 £'000 £000 £'000
338,510 13,423 - 351,933
{90,675) {382,583} {366,980) {840,638}
(10,043) (29,636} {10,235) {49,914)
234 1,068 - 1302
(514,609) {82,189} {2,529) (599,327)
{276,583) (480,317} (379,744) {1,136,644)
235,753 27,676 499 263,928
{71,962} (340,085) (295,874) (707,921}
{10,335} {31,862) {10,909) (53,106}
- (6,947) - (6,947)
{436,355) (76,329) {a454) {513,138)
(282,899) (827.547) {306,738) {1,017,184}
65,462 26,359 - 51,821
(31,294) (355.646] (463.451) (850,391}
- 4,572 - 4,572
(45,127) (16,529) (1,417) {63,073)
{10,959} {341,244) {464,568) (817,071)
890,779 340,690 431,469
(31,293) (336,015) (364,366} {731,674)
- 6,947) . 15,947)
{179,935) {208,422} - (388,357)
(120,449) {210,694} (264,366) (695,509}

The ganreccgnsed in the year an derwatwe fimancial nstruments is d s losed in note (2021 joss in note 8). Interest paid on
barrowings 1s disclosed in note 9 wih further detai's declosed n note 19.

As at 31 December 2022 the Group held a provision against recoverabi:ity of trade recewables of £6,685,000 {2021: £2,425,000). A
review performed on the Group's financial assets cont ded that no adjustment in respect of recoverability was required Asa
resu't, the expected loss adjustment at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 is n '}, with no charge recognised In the years

then ended.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued}
30. Financial Risk Management

Fareign Currency Risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk through its overseas operations, borrowing and through overseas trading. A tross
currency swap has been entered into in order to swap stariing debt into US dollar debt, to be serviced by the Group’s earnings in

this currency, as detailed in note 31.

Exposure
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the balance sheet date, exclud ng derivative financial instruments, is as follows:
UsD EUR NZD
Group £000 £°000 £000
As at 31 Decamber 2022
Trade receivables 22,319 14,193 778
Cash and cash equivalents 49,642 {21,506} 3,679
Trade payables {12,380) {3,356) {52)
Bank loans {3,560) {358,561) -
As at 31 December 2021
Teade receivables 23,809 8,639 -
Cash and cash equivalents 9,963 14,389 5,673
Trade payables {7,050) (2,249) {79}
Bank loans {2.166) (340,136) -

Sensitivity

The sensitivity of the Group's profit and loss and equity, excluding translatianal risks and effects en derivative financial instruments,
are disclosed in the table betow. Derivative financial instruments are excluded as the Group does not apply hedge accounting.

Details regarding the Group's derivative financial iInstruments are given in note 31,

Intreasef{dacrease) in Profit & Loss and increase/{decrease) in equity

USD/GBP exchange rate: increase 5%
USD/GBP exchange rate: decrease 5%
EUR/GBP exchange rate: increase 5%
EUR/GBP exchange rate: decrease 5%
NZD/GBP exchange rate. decrease 5%
NZD/GBP exchange rate: decrease 5%

31 December

2022
£'000

(2,285)
2,239
18,404
{19,324)
(175)
184

31 Decermber
2021
E£7000

{299)
314
16,136

{16,942)
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30. Financial risk managemem (continued)

Interest Rate Risk

The Group has interest bearing assets and liabilities, including cash and debt commitments. The Group halds interest rate swaps,

the details of which are disclosed in note 31,

Exposure
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk at the batance sheet date, excluding dervatve fnancial instruments, 15 as follows:

Balance Intarast Rate
Group £'000 %
As at 31 December 2022
Bank overdrafts - 6.93
Amounts owed to parent undertakin gs 292,330 5.99
8ank loans 551,140 £.99
As at 31 Dacember 2021
Bank overdrafts - 375
Amcounts owed to parent undertakings 221,874 5.99
Bank loans 491,374 4.33
Sensitvity

The sensitivity of the Group’s profit and loss and equity to movements in interest rate arises mainly as a result of its borrowings.
The effect of a 1% movement in the underlying exchange rates on the Group's loss before tax are given in the table below. All

figures exclude the effects an darivative financial instruments 2s the Group does nat apoly hedge accounting. Details regarding the
Group’s derivative finaneial instruments are given m note 31

Increasef(decrease) in Profit & Loss and increase/(decrease) in aquity

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

£'000 €000

Bark cf England base interest rate: increase by 1 percentage point (155) -
Bank of England base interest rate: decrease by 1 percentage point 185 -
GBP SONA: increase by 1 percentage point {1,303) (1,065)
GEBP SONWI; decrease by 1 percentage paint 1,303 505
& month EURIBOR: increase by 1 percentage point 13,586) {1,510)
6-month EURIBOA: decrease by 1 percentage point 3,586 -
Sharehelder loan interest rate: increase by 1 percentage point (2,930) {3,996)
Shareholder loan interest rate: decrease by 1 percentage point 2,930 442
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21 Nerivative financial inctrumante

Group

As at 31 December 2022

Liabiiitres classifed as held for tradmg (*}
Interest rate swaps

Cross currency swaps

Basis Rate swaps

FX derivatives

Total

As at 31 December 2021

Liabilities clossified as held for troding (*)
Interest rate swaps

Cross currancy swaps

Basis Rate swaps

Total

Current Non-current

portion portian Tatal
£000 £000 £'000
4,648 2,544 7,192
{305) (2,310} {2.619)

{3.270) - {3,270}
1,069 234 1,303

{2,208) (2,072) {4,280)

{5.904) 3,237 {2,667)

{8,112) 1,165 6.947)

{*} These dervative financial instruments are not designated as hedges and so are required to be classified as held-for-trading.

The full fair value of a derivative financial instrument is classified as a non-current asset or hability if the remaining maturity of the
irem s mare than 12 months and, as a current asset or iability, if the maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months. The

dervative financial instruments are not traded in an active market, but the fair values are based on quoted market prices,
broker/dealer quotations, or altermative pncing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency. Therefore, these are
measured at fair value in accordance with the IFRS 13 classification herarchy level 2,

Interest rate swaps

The national principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts at 31 December 2022 were £193,681,120 (2021
£204,175 527), made up of £74,000,000 and €155 ,000,000 {2021 of £74,000,000 znd €155,000,000) and have maturity dates in

2024 (2021 .2028}.

Al 31 December 2022, the fixed interest rates vary from 0.46% to 2.94% [2021: 0.46% to 2.94 %], and the main fioatIng rates are
EURIBOR and SON A. Ga'ns and losses are recagnised as fair value through profit or loss.

Cross currency rate swap

The Group holds four cross currency rate swap contracts at 21 December 20622, als of which mature 1n 2024 (2021: 2024) All four
contracts have ariginal currency USD, with total value of $278,519,000 {2021: $278,519,000} and swapped currency ELR. The total
aotional f xed rate pring pal amount at 31 December 2022 was $278,519,000 {2021 $278,519,000) and the total notianal floating
rate principaamount at 31 December 2022 was €250,000,000 {2021 €250,000,000). This is a f oating for fixed swap, with a fwed
interest rate of 6.71% (2021: 6.71%) and floating rates based on 3 5% {2021 3.5%) above the 6 month EURIBOR {m nimum 0%).
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31, Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Company

As at 31 December 2022

Linbifewe s classified as held for trading (*)
interest rate swaps

Crosicurrendy swaps

Basis Rate swaps

Total

As at 31 December 2021

Liabiftres class fred as held for trading (*)
interest rate swaps

Cross currency swaps

Bask Rate swaps

Total

Current Non-turrent

portion portion Tosal
£'000 £000 £'000
4,648 2,544 2,192
{309) {23109 {2,619)
4,339 234 4,573

{2,208} {2,072} (4,280}

5,904} 3,237 (2,667)

[8,112) 1,165 6,947}

{*) These deriatie financial instruments are not designat ed A shed ges and so are required ta be classified as held for trading

The full fair value of a denvative f nanc al instrument & class# €d as a non current asset or hability if the remaining maturity of the
1em 15 more than 12 monthsand, as a current asset or §abiddy if the maturity of the hedged tem is less than 12 months The

dervative financialinstruments are not traded in an active market, but the far values are based on guoted market pr ces,
broker/dealer quotations, or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency. Therefore, these are
measured at fair value in accordance with the 1FRS 13 classification lierarchy level 2

Interest rate swaps

The notiora’ principal amounts of tha outstanding interest rate swap contracts at 31 December 2022 were £193,681,120 {2021
£204,175 527}, made up of £74,000,000 and €155 000000 {2021: of £74,000,000 and €155,000,000) and have maturity dates in

2024 [2021:2024).

At 31 Cecember 2022, the fixed interest rates vary from 0 46% to 2 94%{2021: 0 46% to 2.94%), and the main floating rates are
EURIBOR and SONW Gains and Josses are recognsed as fair value through proft or loss.

Cross currency rate swag

The Group holds four cross currency rate swap contracts at 31 December 2022, all of which mature n 2024 {2021:; 2024) All four
contracts have onginateurrency USD, with totaiva'ue of $278,519,000 (2021: $278,519,000) and swapped currency EUR. The tota!
not ona! fxed rate principal amount at 31 December 2022 was 5278,51%,008 (2021: $278,519,000) and tha total not cnal floating
rate principatamaunt at 31 Decernber 2022 was £250,000,000 (2021: €250 ,000,000). This 1s a Foatng for fixed swap, with a fixed
interest rate ef 6 7144 (20216 717 and {loating rates based on 3.5% (2021: 3.5%) above the & month EUR BOR {minimum 0%).

32, Dividends

Dividends paid £n 1{2021: £49.84) per £0 01 share

2022 2021
£'000 £000
- 12,719
- 12719
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

33, Related party transactions

Balances and transactons between the Company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been ehminated on
consolidation and are nat disclosed in this note. Trarsactions between the Group and its associates are disciosed below

Trading transactjons

During the year, Group companies entered into the following transactions with related parties who are not members of the Group:

Group

Warner Bros. Discovery, 1a¢. and subs diaries
Liberty Global plc and subsdiaries

Seven Stories Limited

Caravan Media Limited

Story Films Ltd and subsidiaries

Great Scott Media Limited

Studio Lambert Meda Limited

Studio Sitlverback L-mited and subsefaries

3 Rock Productions Limited

Build Your Own Films Ltd

Company

Warner Bros. Dlscovery, Ine. and subsidiaries
Liberty Global ple. and subsidiaries

Sale of goads

Purchase of goods and services

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £'000 £000 £'000
118,490 97,903 1,500 1.500
275 316 1,500 1.500
a7 344 22 -
s - - -

10 230 -
1,070 624 - -
- 1,198 . 42
448 607 32 78
83 - -
120,758 101,222 3,054 3,120
Sale of goods Purchase of goods and services
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Decamber
2022 2021 2022 2021
£'000 E'000 £000 £000
- - 1,500 1,500
- - 1,500 1,500
- - 3,000 3,000
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33. Related party transactions (continued)

The foRowing amounts were outstanding at the balance sheet date.

Group Amounts owed by related Amounts owed to related
partles parties
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Dacember
2022 2021 2022 2021
£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000
Warner 8ros . Discovery, Inc. and subsidiaries 5,916 6,557 148,158 114 125
Liberty Gobal ple and subsidiaries 71 i51 222,290 188 537
Seven Stores Limited 1,325 2,781 - -
Caravan Media Limited 365 476 -
Story Films itd and subsidiaries 615 1,265 140 233
Great Scott Media Limited 1,067 819 - -
Studio Lambert Media Limited and subsid aries - 1125 - -
Studia Silverback Limited and subsidiaries 56 252 -
Bullion Productions Limited 25 3 - a5
3 Rock Praductions Limited 336 - - -

Build Your Qwn Films Ltd - - -

9,776 13,429 370,628 303,001
Company Ameunts owed by related Amounts owed to related
parties parties
31December 31 December 31 0ecember 31 December
2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £'000 £000 £000
Wwarner Bros, Discovery, Inc.and subsidiaries - - 147,990 114,112
Liberty Globa! plc and subsidiaries - - 222,290 138,537
- - 370,280 302,649

Discovery Inc. and Liberty Global plc
Since the acquisition on 23 September 2014 of Ali3Media Holdngs Limited by DLG Acquis tions Limited there have been sales of

televis0n programmes and payments of royaities to subsidiaries of Liberty Global plc and Warner Bros, Discovery, Inc.in addition,
subsidiaries of Liberty Global plc and Warner Bros. Discovery, Inc. charge a tota. management fee of £3m per annum to OLG
AcquisXions Limited.

Amounts repayable to Discovery Inc. and Liberty Global ple carry 1nterest of 5.99% (2021 5 99%) per annum charged on the
outstand ing loan balances.

Other Related Paities

DLG Acquisitions Limited owns 19.99% of Caravan Media Limited, 27 02% of Seven Staries Lim ted, 32.5% of Stary Fhms Ltd, 24 .95%
of Bullion Productions Limited, 20% of Greal Scott Media Lim#ted, 49.0% of 8uld Your Gwn films Ltd and 12 5% of 3 Rock
Productians Limited

£ntities that are part of the Group have taken advantage of the axempt 'on from FR$101 and do not need to disclose transactions
within the Group where 100% of the subsidiary’s voting rights are contro ded withun the Group . The amounits outstanding are
unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or received. No provisions have been made for doubtful
debts in respect of the amounts owed by related part'es

Arnounts owed by Caravan Media Limited carry interest at a rate of 5%+ 3 month SONIA. Amounts owed by Seven Stories Limited
carry intarest fixed at 1.76%. Amounts owed by Story Fims Ltd and Bullion Productions Limited carry interest at rates of 1.5%+ BOE
base rate. Amounts owed by Great Scott Medra Limited carry interest at rates of 2.0%+ BOE base rate
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4. Carpnrate arnnisitinne

[+ On 2 December 2022, the Group acquired 100% of Pos Video & Television BV The folow:ngtable sets out the book values of the
icentifiable net assets acquired together with the provisional fair value to the Group

Fair value .

Book value adjustment Fair value
£'000 £000 €000
Intangible fixed assets 2,656 fa} 2,656
Deferred Tax hability an intang ble .
Property, piant and equipment . . -

Right of use assets . N
Current assets 45 45
Cash 45 - 45
Current liabidties (90 - (90)
Non-current Jabilites . .
Net habdlities acquired - 2,656 2,656
Goodw Il recognised -
2,656

Diicharged by

Consideraton paid - cash 1,770
Peferred consideration —payable within 1 year 886

Adjustments:
{a) dentified intangible assets representing forecast income on the distributian of the POSV catalogue acquired.

The Group acquired Pos V deo & Television 8.V. as part of the Group's strategy to grow its television production business. The
Intang ble asset recognised represents synerg s and future cashflows expected to be generated from the production of the
acquired formats .

NB: Since January 2021, the acquired company has been inact ve due to the production by IDTV of the formats and associated
roya ty agreement  The sobe source of income since 2021 was the royalty income derived from the productions of POSY farmats by
IDTV.

As a component of the acquisitton, a’lroyalty entitlements for 2022 productions have been reversed and included in the
determination of the purchase price of the company.

Pos Video & Television B ¥ *s revenue for the full financial year 2022 was Enil. Revenue for the one manth of ownership in the
period was also £ril. Pos Video & te’evision B.V. made no profit or fass for the full financ al year 2022, If Pos video & television B.V.
had been acquired on 1 january 2022, the Group's prafit or loss would not change for the financizl year 2022,

Gross contractual amounts of current assets receivabes as at acqulsition date are £39,260 wh ch are expected to be collected.
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34. Corporate acquisitions (continued}

(«) On 1 September 2022, the Group executed the convertable loan note at Studio Lambert Media Limited. The conversion of the
fpan notes resulied in the issue of 50,000 ordinary C shares of £0.001 each and 2,428 ordinary D shares of £0,001 each to the Group.
The Group now owns 50.1% of voting rights and 24,99% of economic rights of Stud o Lambert Media Limited and s subsidiaries.

Fair value

Book value adjustment Fair value
£000 £000 £000
Inventories 37,078 . 37074
Current assets 304 - 304
Cash 4,803 - 4,803
Net current hiabilities excl. cash {44,913} . (44,913}
Net habilities acquired {2,732) - {2,732}
Goodwill recognsed 2,839
107

Discharged by:
Conversion of Yoan note to equity 107

Adjustments:

Between 1 January 2022 to 31 August 2022 Stud b Lambert Media Limited, and its subsidiaries, were accounted for as an Associate.
The group assessed the fair vaiue of Stud o Lambeart Media at the acquisiion date and identified no lurther adjustments.

The Group stepped up its investment i Studio Lambert Media Lumited as part of the Group’s strategy to grow its television
production busimess.

Studio Lambert Media Limited, and s subsidiares, revenue for the full inancial year 2022 was £47,122,000. Revenue for the three
maonths of ownersh.p in the penod was £37,193 000

Studio Lambert Medsa Limted, and its subsdiares, made a profit of £2,470,000 for the full financial year 2022. However, profit for
the three months of ownership was £4 090,000,

If Studio Lambert Media Limited, and ks subsidiare s, had been acquired on 1 January 2022, the Group’s revenue would have been
£1,030,815,000 and net lass would have been £40,772 000

Gross contractual amounts of current assets recewables as at scquisil on date are £304,000 which are expected to be collected.

There were ng bther corporate acquisitions in 2022

35. Parent and uitimate parent undertaking

The ult mate controlling parties at the bakince sheet date were Liberty Global pk and Warner Bros. Discovery, Inc , which owned
LGCtHoUCo | BV and Discovery International UK Ho khngs Lirnited, respectively, which are joint owners of DLG Acquisiions
Lmited
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1R Parant andit avamptinn

The following subsidiaries are exempt from the requirements of this Act relating to the audit of accounts under section 4794 of the

Companies Act 2006:

Name of Company Lomgpany Number
CA2 Productions Limited 12749934
Zero Chill Preductions Limited 12021001
Champion TV Fynance Ltd 13776816
Aurcra Media Worldwide UK Limited 5094691
Bentley Productions Limited 1823410
Company Television Limited 3522155
Company Pictures Limited 3733209
Atrium IV Limited 10633584
Red Rooster Television Limited 2534147
Mersey Acquisitions Limited 5470620
Maror Praduction Services Limited 8874907
DLG Fmancing 2 Limited 9168112
DLG Financing 1 Limited 9168099
Assembly Film & Telavision Limited 2918727
All3Media USA Limited 8304115
Wings Acquisition Company Limited 10676690
Moneda Productions Limited 2952809
All3Media Holdings Limited 5860302
Alt3Media Finance Limited 3860159
All3Media Limited 4782820
DIGITAL RIGHTS GROUP LIMITED 5978061
Annika Stranded Finance Limited 12962200
Wild West Finance Limited 12769755
Rainforest Finance Limited 11683190
All3Media Internalional Limited 3203247
The Lime Picturgs Holding Company Limited 1588828
Mersey P L Limijted 1475985
Lion Television Limited 1336415
Lime Pictures {Nursery) Limited 10045606
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35, Parent audit exemption (continued)

Lime Pictures {HH} Limited 10211220
Lime Entertainment Limited 12462712
Ravenscourt §ervices Limited 3534197
Lion Television Narth Lmited 3645028
Licm Cubs Lomited 3927900
Lion Media Limited 3927869
Littie Dot Studios timited 8419628
Hit Netwarks Ltd 10559854
Maverick Te'evsion Limited 2866002
Marton Books Limited 8898630
New Pictures Limited 8241917
Witchery Pictures Lanited 11111285
North One Television Limited 2315596
DirtQuake Limited 10741836
Eledric Talent Limited 6389398
Betty TV Limited 4311471
OF Productions {Us) Limited 11372899
Obyective Media Group Limited 2705218
OF Productions {Toast ) Limited 129G8807
One Potato Two Potato L mited 6572441
Raw Factual Limited 11256245
Raw Scripted Limited 11256227
Raw 1990 Limited {previously Raw Vogue Limited)) 14167110
Raw Calfornia Limited (previously Raw Wild West Limited) 13947748
Westbridge Productions Limited 9483090
Studio Larnbert Limited 6461004
Studio Lambert Associates Limited 9227451
Stud v Lambert Media L-mited 12115640
Two Brothers Pictures Lmited 7822665
Unstoppable Film and Televiston Limited 9790290
West foad Pictures Limited 11780008
DALG Productions Limited 12879938
ba g 2 Productions Limited 13577037
CAZ Productions Limited 12749934
TSP2 Productions Limited 11483582
Mud Productions Limited 12209833
Requiem Productions Limited 10475471
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